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end March 2013

3  Business Unit Councils 

42 Regional Management Committees 

256 functional Liaison Committees 

96 committees in the development phase to become fully 

functional Liaison Committees

2 801 leader volunteers 57% of colour and 43% white 

8 218 contracted volunteers  

Approximately 7 000 assisted ad hoc with specific projects 

or events

228 *clustered orientation courses conducted for new 

volunteers

 1 113 in-service training workshops offered to volunteer 

groups

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

Volunteer Development and

Management

 

The gateway to our success as a 

sustainable service focussed organisation, 

is the effective mobilisation and utilisation 

of volunteers. Key focus areas for 

volunteer mobilisation and management in 

the year included recruitment, development 

and training as well as loyalty and 

nurturing programmes. Dedicated 

volunteers (of which many are survivors or 

people affected by cancer) work with the 

guidance of our staff to maintain and extend our quality 

service delivery as well as to generate income through the 

mobilisation of the community.

 

Getrude Moses - Mariette Loots Friends for Life 
Achievement Award 

Ester Pretorius - 
Award Winner

Mariette Loots Cancer Trust: 

Strategic 
Objective
Mobilising, empowering and 

retaining a diverse group of 

volunteers in South Africa to 

ensure active engagement 

within CANSA to optimise 

CANSA’s governance and 

operational capacity

More than 60% of our contracted 

volunteers are dedicated to helping our 

CANSA staff with care and support service 

as well as promoting health and our care 

and support programmes. 

We are grateful for the growth of our 

volunteer corps, particularly reflecting an 

increase of 10% in leader volunteer equity 

ratio. The equity status of both our 

leadership and lay volunteers is currently 

above target at 57% and 55% respectively. 

During the past year, CANSA introduced a 

volunteer complaint policy to address concerns and volunteer 

complaints managed by our Head: Service Delivery. 

thAnnually on the 5  of December CANSA gives recognition to 

our volunteers on International Volunteers Day thanking them 

for their commitment and significant contribution to CANSA as 

well as their own communities.

Volunteer SnapshotVolunteer Snapshot

*3-5 towns/communities clustered together to ensure cost effective volunteer training 

end March 2012

3  Business Unit Councils 

25 Regional Management Committees 

293 functional Liaison Committees 

136 committees in the development phase to become fully 

functional Liaison Committees

2 633 leader volunteers 47% of colour and 53% white 

7 260 contracted volunteers  

Approximately 7 000 assisted ad hoc with specific projects 

or events

224 *clustered orientation courses conducted for new 

volunteers.

1 153 in-service training workshops offered to volunteer 

groups

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?
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Mariette Loots Awards 2012

Mariette Loots Cancer Trust: Award Winner 

?

Mariette Loots Friends for Life Achievement Award 

?

Mariette Loots Cancer Trust: Merit Award Winners 

?

?

?

?

?

The annual Mariette Loots Cancer Trust Awards embody the 

commitment of volunteers to cancer survivors and CANSA on 

a national level. CANSA regional nominations are forwarded to 

the Mariette Loots Cancer Trust’s Awards Selections 

Committee. They select the Merit and two main award winners 

each year based on a stringent grading system.

Ester Pretorius (West Gauteng) - this cancer survivor, 

recently awarded ‘Global Relay For Life Hero of Hope’ for 

2013, dedicates her time and talents towards patient care 

as well as other survivors – she’s further involved in fund 

raising projects

Getrude Moses (Boland / Overberg) - a volunteer since 

1999, is actively involved in patient care, promoting health 

as well as running a quarterly support group for survivors – 

she also assists with talks at schools and fund raising 

activities  

Selina van Devender (Eastern Cape) - helps with patient 

care, volunteer coordination, raising funds and is a leader 

volunteer

Isabel Coetzee (West Coast) – is a patient care coordinator, 

helps with health promotion training and is also a leader 

volunteer 

Helene van der Westhuizen (Waterberg) – this leader 

volunteer actively recruits other volunteers for patient care 

and teams for Relay For Life events  

Sue Diedericks (North Gauteng) - a CANSA volunteer for 

14 years, provides support for patients and is a Relay For 

Life leader volunteer 

Heather Ann Timmerman (Southern Cape / Klein Karoo) – 

a trained nurse and  cancer survivor herself, she guides a 

patient care volunteer group since 2003 

We salute all our committed volunteers as our cancer warriors 

who selflessly gave of themselves and their time to the cancer 

cause.

The Road Ahead 
?On-going adherence to Employment Equity control 

measures to improve equity targets

?Improving the existing incentive programme with the 

input of the Executive Management Team (MANCO) 

?Implementing of the skills development plan  

?Updating and reviewing of HR policies and 

procedures

?Reviewing of pension fund providers 

?Implementing of HR software programme to include 

self-service and administrative atomisation

An inspirational story 
Lindelwa Faith Songca (69 yrs) hails from Mdantsane in East 

London. As a breast cancer survivor receiving support and care 

from the CANSA Amatole Care Centre, she was recruited and 

trained to become a Navigator, (leader volunteer) for 

Phakamisa. Her training and experience as a CANSA volunteer 

inspired her to start her own support group to help other cancer 

survivors. Read her inspiring message.

“I was 66 years old when I discovered a lump in my breast in 

November 2008. My family doctor referred me for a 

mastectomy, which was followed up with chemotherapy and 

radiation. Afterwards I developed lymphoedema in my one arm 

which CANSA helped me to manage and treat. 

In time, I became a CANSA Volunteer as well as a Phakamisa 

Navigator with the opportunity to specialise in supporting breast 

cancer patients. I am trained to help guide cancer patients 

through the public treatment system quickly and effectively., so 

that they can receive treatment as soon as possible. Through 

Phakamisa, I receive a cell phone, monthly airtime and transport 

allowance, to help cover the costs of following up with ladies in 

my support group and newly diagnosed patients. This all helps 

me to get to know and stay in touch with my patients.

It was my dream to start  a support group  and it was so 

exciting when I launched the ‘Faith Phakamisa Support Group’ 

in December 2011. My family, community and CANSA all 

supported my efforts and I even had T-shirts and banners made 

for my support group. Since starting the group I have been able 

to assist ladies from as far away as the Transkei.

My advice to all women is to do breast self-examinations at 

least once per month and to go to the clinic regularly for check-

ups. My message to those diagnosed with cancer - it’s not a 

death sentence. There is life after diagnosis – I am a survivor of 

three years and I am living proof of this! To those beginning 

their cancer journey, I say, be positive and strong. Accept the 

change in your lifestyle and eat healthier. Don’t allow denial to 

prevent you from dealing with cancer and receiving treatment. 

And it’s important to join support groups and to share your 

challenges you are facing and to be encouraged by others.”
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Integrating Business

BUSINESS 
SOLUTIONS
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Areas of focus
?

?

CANSA 3D

Business Information and Intelligence

Information and Communication 

Technology

In the last year an IT Forum has 

been established - regular meetings held 

with stakeholders ensuring that risk 

management is paramount

Our new Customer Relationship 

Management system called CANSA 3D, was conceptualised 

and developed to provide a long term solution to CANSA’s 

previous lack of a central information repository. CANSA 3D 

aims to support better business decision-making by using 

technologies, processes, and applications to analyse internal, 

structured data and business processes to support strategic 

decision making.

Previously, information supplied by staff and volunteers was 

not available in digital format which meant that we had to rely 

on the manual submission of monthly and quarterly reports. 

A further lack of a central information repository made it 

impossible for staff to identify the same person as a donor, 

patient, volunteer and/or staff member. The finance 

department also experienced difficulty in reconciling figures 

reported by the regions with only the use of a general ledger 

system.

CANSA 3D makes it possible to segment CANSA’s database 

based on current and frequency of financial contributions, 

service programmes accessed, training received or given, as 

well as interaction recorded. The design and development is 

also based on a phased-in approach allowing future 

requirements as needed. Within the first phase, master file 

information can be viewed from various different perspectives 

(donors, volunteers, patient, staff), thus giving a three 

dimensional view on all CANSA’s stakeholders – hence the 

name ‘CANSA 3D’. 

CANSA 3D Super Users

Strategic 
Objective
Creating and sustaining 

strategic initiatives through the 

utilisation of technology to 

enhance efficiency in CANSA 

and to introduce measurable 

deliverables

Stakeholder management will be enhanced 

through the following beneficial information 

being captured:

all donations and financial contributions

a history of all communication between 

CANSA and its stakeholders (thank you 

letters, receipts, tax certificates, service 

certificates, emails, SMS’s, letters, faxes, 

phone calls)

service history of staff and volunteers 

(such as hours volunteered or training 

provided)

support service received from CANSA (such as patient and 

clinical support, screening and care home accommodation)

seetings attended

A history of all transaction types will be on record for 

reporting and analysis 

Provision of integrated financial reporting and control of the 

income within the general ledger system 

Elimination of database duplications 

Automation of monthly reporting as required within CANSA’s 

operations

45 CANSA 3D ‘Super Users’ were trained by our Head: 

Business Solutions and CANSA 3D’s developer, Logicore

220 end users were trained by Super Users and the Head: 

Business Solutions

Workshops were held with CANSA’s Service Delivery team, 

senior Finance team as well as CANSA’s Management 

Committee (MANCO) where Logicore provided an overview 

of CANSA 3D’s functionality and senior managers had the 

opportunity to identify various management reports that 

would aid in optimally managing their respective business 

unit or department

?

?

?

?

?

Benefits of 3D:

?

?

?

?

Training and workshops
?

?

?

Implementation
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Training materials – software & training 

guidebook

Software Coding

Network and telephony 

Network and telephony by Numbers
?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

An end-user training guideline was compiled for use by the 

Super Users during end user training.

As CANSA 3D is a new system, corrections and additions will 

be made on a continuous basis to ensure that the software 

remains aligned to CANSA’s extensive and complex 

operational requirements.

CANSA initiated standardisation of its network and telephony 

infrastructure in the latter half of 2010. This entailed replacing 

legacy PBX systems with corporate standard PBXs, routers 

and POE (power over Ethernet) switches. Additionally, CANSA 

made the strategic decision to adopt a Voice over Internet 

Protocol (VOIP) approach to realise potential cost savings of 

at least 35% on outgoing calls. With VOIP, inter-branch calls 

between CANSA’s more than 50 offices across South Africa 

are routed over data networks and internet. All costs 

associated with these long distances calls have been 

eliminated. Cost savings since switching to VOIP – 36.56%.

The management of CANSA’s telephony and network 

infrastructure is outsourced and the benefit of this model is a 

cost effective single point of contact and single source of 

responsibility. 

Number of phone calls made – 565 961

VOIP calls between offices – 316 320 minutes (5 272 hours)

Average savings on VOIP telephone calls during 2012/2013 

– 38.82%

Conference call servers deployed - 1

Conference call servers in use - 4

Network cables installed - 25km

1 562 network support queries attended to

670 hours remote network support provided

Information Technology

IT by Numbers
?

?

?

?

?

TMCancerSure

During September 2012 a strategic decision was made to 

outsource the provision of technical support staff to a third 

party. There are currently two outsourced technicians from 

Comm IT Technology Solutions (Pty) Ltd whom are based at 

Head Office in Bedfordview.

75 Network printers 

330 Computers

341 e-mail users (incl. email groups) 

1 479 desktop support queries attended to

986 hours spent on desktop support 

CANSA introduced CancerSure (a first of its kind in South 

Africa), comprehensive insurance policy aimed at meeting the 

financial needs of those diagnosed with cancer. It was 

specially developed for CANSA by LionHeart Risk 

Management for the purpose of meeting the financial needs 

that may arise when someone aged 18 – 60 is diagnosed with 

cancer. 

People who have had cancer in the past are usually excluded 
TMfrom this type of cover, however with CancerSure , people 

who have been free of cancer for at least 10 years can also 

be covered.

The policy was launched during April 2012 and although the 

market penetration was initially slower than expected, efforts 

to market the policy to target audiences are on-going. 

The management of this product has been transferred to the 

Business Development department as of April 2013. 

The Road Ahead 
?Rolling and implementing of CANSA 3D 

?Implementing a new telephony and network 

infrastructure to reduce overhead costs and improve 

voice, call and data quality

?Standardising of the procurement, maintenance and 

cost management of network and desktop printers

?On-going cost and asset management of computers

?Managing CANSA’s IT asset portfolio effectively, with 

respect to risk, cost and governance
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Strategy Roll-Out

What we achieved
?

?

?

?

Service Delivery

In June 2012, the CANSA Board of 

Directors defined the main goals in a new 

three-year strategy plan in order to be a 

stronger, more focussed organisation. 

Operations translated these goals into 

objectives and measurable targets and 

significant milestones have been reached 

despite the slow economic recovery in our 

country influenced by the global financial 

meltdown. 

Partnerships are at the heart of the most 

important objectives derived from the new 

strategy, namely optimising our service offering through 

partnering with our volunteers, communities, government and 

cancer treatment facilities to relieve the burden for people 

living with cancer and their loved ones. 

53% more beneficiaries were reached this year

50% growth in volunteer numbers utilising international and 

national trends 

average growth of 1.82% in income of our national 

fundraising projects

23 people joined us as online Activists to help raise funds 

and awareness

We fulfilled CANSA’s purpose in leading the fight against 

cancer by helping to improve the quality of life of cancer 

survivors through our care and support programmes. We 

raised awareness about cancer through health campaigns as 

well as educated the public on reducing their risk of cancer 

through our early detection screening programmes. We 

reached more than 45 000 beneficiaries through the following 

service offerings

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Strategic 
Objective
Directing and providing 

leadership in all areas of 

operations to ensure 

sustainable income and value-

added service to all 

communities through the 

effective mobilisation of 

community resources and 

partnerships

Survivorship Programmes 
At CANSA Care Centres, survivors, 

caregivers and their loved ones were 

recognised for their role in fighting cancer. 

They were also provided with care and 

support, assisted emotionally, physically 

and spiritually to cope, as well as 

encouraged to lead balanced lifestyles that 

would significantly reduce the recurrence 

of cancer.

On International Survivors’ Day, in June 

2012, we arranged special entertainment 

functions for survivors and caregivers. 

Survivors and others had the opportunity 

to write inspirational messages of hope and received a 

certificate from CANSA in recognition of their participation.

We increased our visibility through the introduction of our care 

and support programmes in partnership with oncologists and 

treatment centres to ensure professional assistance and 

support to patients receiving treatment.

The Movember Metropolitan Integrated Care programme 

entails a comprehensive support programme for prostate and 

testicular cancer survivors in five metropolitan centres, 

Pretoria, Johannesburg, Bloemfontein, Durban and Cape 

Town. The Dignity Tool (needs-based online tool used to 

assess quality of support and care) was adjusted to cater 

specifically for this target group of survivors and used to 

assess their needs to develop comprehensive personalised 

support programmes. 

AMONG SA MEN AND WOMEN

Toll-free 0800 22 66 22
www.cansa.org.za

WHAT IS 
CANCER?                                                                    

?
?
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Development of Home-Based Care 

Resources 

?

?

CANSA Tough Living with Cancer (TLC) 

Programme

Cancer Screening on the move 

Two flagship service delivery programmes added resources 

and enhanced our focus on specifically breast as well as 

prostate and testicular cancer survivors. 

Phakamisa Navigation Programme - provides accredited 

training and professional development courses regarding 

breast cancer for volunteers. The trained volunteers promote 

regular screening, assist in referrals and follow-ups of 

diagnosed patients as well as quick and effective treatment 

through the public facilities system. 

The Movember Navigation Programme - involves recruiting 

and training male volunteers to assist prostate and testicular 

cancer survivors. The volunteers enable survivors to access 

the care they need from health and medical services, 

specifically public facilities, as quickly and efficiently as 

possible. They are also trained to give care that is 

appropriate and sensitive to each individual’s situation, 

culture and knowledge of cancer as well as cater to the 

needs of the families and caregivers. 

A highlight was the expansion of the TLC Paediatric Oncology 

Ward and lodging facilities at the Pietersburg Provincial 

Hospital in Polokwane. It now accommodates 24 mothers, 

guardians and caregivers whose children are undergoing 

cancer treatment and includes an outdoor play area as well as 

consulting rooms for a paediatric oncologist. We are grateful 

for the wonderful support received from workplaces, donors, 

churches and individuals to establish this unit, especially the 

Industrial Development Corporation, Chemserve and the Kirsty 

Watts Foundation that provided sponsorship to the total value 

of R800 000.

Our nine mobile health units are active in all provinces and 

offer life-saving early detection services in rural communities. 

We continue to provide Wellness Days at workplaces, 

promoting cancer screening and education to reduce the 

cancer risk.

This life-changing event remains our flagship income 

generating project. During the past year, we have enhanced 

the service delivery in those communities that support Relay 

events. 

86 Relay community events hosted country-wide

4 405 teams participated

5 628 survivors celebrated with us 

More than 220 000 people shared this life-changing 

experience

Total income raised: R13.8 million (this 4.21% growth in the 

current weak economic climate is a significant achievement)

The 10th national CANSA Shavathon was hosted during the 

week of 25 February - 2 March 2013. The popular CANSA 

Wraps were successfully introduced and generated additional 

income. With what was a noticeable improvement in project 

management, 236 workplaces participated and nearly 900 

Shavathon events took place at public places, shopping 

centres and regional venues raising R6.7 million despite the 

current economic challenges. 

The Sanlam Cancer Challenge in 2012 raised a total income 
stof R2.9 million. We celebrated the 21  year of this national 

amateur tournament, attracting entries from almost 40 000 

golfers that took part in the 800 club qualifying competitions. 

National Income

Relay For Life 

Relay For Life Snapshot
?

?

?

?

CANSA Shavathon

Sanlam Cancer Challenge
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Cuppa For CANSA

Provincial and Regional Income 

Volunteer Development and Management

The valuable national partnership by sponsors Shoprite 

Checkers and Laager Rooibos Tea assisted us in raising over 

R2 million, of which R669 855 was directly raised by Shoprite 

Checkers stores. Good internal monitoring systems kept a 

close tag on the roll-out, control and implementation of this 

project.

Provincial events take place on a business unit and/or 

provincial level, requiring input from CANSA staff and 

volunteers, while regional events are smaller, hosted in the 

regions and mainly driven by volunteers.

Provincial projects achieved 90% of its budget (R7.7 million), 

consisting primarily telemarketing, Jail n Bail and Toktokkie 

(Tap-Tap) initiatives. Telemarketing income has improved 

since being outsourced as opposed to the previous in-house 

approach. The Northern Business Unit Telemarketing 

generated R2.7 million against a budget of R1.9 million while 

the Central Business Unit Telemarketing raised R714 000 

against a budget of R319 000.

Regional special events generated income of R6.8 million - a 

shortfall of R2.9 million against budget, while Head Office 

special events achieved a total income of R1.30 million 

against the budgeted income of R1.45 million.

We’re extremely grateful for dedicated volunteer corps. 

Through their selfless gift of caring, they devote their time and 

talents to those in need, as well as assist CANSA in fulfilling 

our mission. They are the gateway to our success in service 

delivery and income generation and therefore recruiting, 

developing, training and nurturing our volunteers remains an 

important focus of our activities.

Volunteer Snapshot
?

?

?

?

Thanks

11 019 volunteers involved in service delivery and projects - 

56% of colour; 44% white 

2 801 leadership volunteers - 57% of colour; 43% white

228 orientation courses conducted for new volunteers 

1 113 in-service training workshops 

I wish to thank all staff, donors and volunteers for the hard 

work, contributions and valuable support during the year under 

review. You enabled us to deliver on our purpose and 

mission. By choosing to support CANSA, you play a 

significant role in the development of the cancer care and 

support infrastructure in South African communities.

The Road Ahead
We face many challenges and our current focus is to 
steer our organisation to become financially sound and 
to optimise our value offerings to our donors and 
supporters. We will become sustainable and able to 
optimise our value offerings to the public by:

?Continuing to provide holistic care and support to 
cancer survivors and their loved ones from the time of 
diagnosis, through all phases of need, including 
survivorship at our CANSA Care Centres, Care 
Homes, TLC facilities and Home-Based programmes

?Nurturing and building on our volunteer base and 
corporate partnerships

?Promoting high performance behaviour through the 
leveraging of best practices and talents within our 
teams 

?Ensuring stringent budgeted income management and 
improvement of fundraising effectiveness to improve 
CANSA’s sustainability through the application of 
evidence-based knowledge and information gained in 
the past financial year
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A Journey to 
Excellence

65



One in four South Africans are affected by 

cancer through diagnosis of family, friends 

or self. For each person diagnosed, cancer 

is a unique experience. No two people will 

share the same journey during and after 

cancer treatment. One common thread in 

all people with cancer is the need for a 

good support system. 

We work with survivors to find the best 

care solution and advise on managing 

treatment and related side-effects, be it physical, emotional 

and/ or spiritual. We provide care, support, guidance and 

advice to cancer survivors and their families to improve their 

quality of life in all phases of treatment. Our service delivery 

programmes are divided into in-house facilities and community 

focussed offerings. 

During the period under review, the focus was ensuring that 

all standards and guidelines were implemented and adhered 

to while zoning in on monitoring and evaluation. 

Established a new service delivery business model

Introduced a new volunteer strategy document 

Approved and finalised a survivors strategy 

Produced care and support manuals 

Developed more than 100 clinical policies, procedures and 

guidelines that were approved by the Quality Assurance 

Committee

A total of eight new clinical staff members were orientated 

and 42 staff current up-skilled on clinical procedures and 

activities. This includes training regarding the FotoFinder 

device for skin examinations as well as the SureTouch 

device for pre-screening for breast cancer 

New employees that work directly with cancer patients, 

received training on the Dignity tool (needs-based online 

tool used to assess quality of support and care) 

What we achieved 
?

?

?

?

?

Staff Development and training
?

?

Mobile Health Units do screening tests in remote 
rural areas

Skin examinations using the FotoFinder device

Strategic 
Objective
Ensuring that CANSA provides 

a sustainable, people centred, 

evidence-based service 

resulting in a meaningful 

impact on cancer control in SA

?

?

Health Awareness Campaigns

?

?

?

?

Early detection and screening

Community Mobilisers were trained with 

community mobilisation skills with an 

emphasis on building community 

structures

Introduced media technology as part of 

the training modules to up-skill 

theoretical knowledge

 
Knowledge is power. We drive five national 

awareness campaigns – SunSmart, 

Balanced Lifestyle, Anti-tobacco, Women’s, Men’s, Children 

and Youth Health as well as Environmental cancer control 

awareness. 

Health Awareness by Numbers
Approximately 1.2 million people were reached 

directly through:

10 167 health talks 

1 600 exhibitions

Awareness campaigns were promoted through the 

distribution of: 

568 581 information pamphlets 

8 512 posters (some in four languages)

We fight cancer by making people aware of early detection of 

cancer and the importance of screening. CANSA has eight 

Mobile Health Units which travel to remote areas throughout 

South Africa to reach people who would otherwise not have 

access to screening. These include the Pap smear screening 

test for cervical cancer; Prostate Specific Antigen tests (PSA) 

a simple blood test to help detect prostate cancer, breast 

examinations, as well as other health tests such as cholesterol 

screening.
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Cancer screening
Conducted 15 140 Pap smears for detection of cervical 

cancer and facilitated an additional 4 824 in partnership with 

the Department of Health (DOH) with an approximate 7% 

abnormalities detected and referred

Performed 16 310 breast examinations to detect breast 

lumps and facilitated an additional 1 726 in partnership with 

the DOH with an approximate 3% abnormalities detected 

and referred

Conducted 9 773 PSA tests to detect prostate cancer and 

facilitated an additional 110 in partnership with DOH with an 

approximate 6% abnormalities detected and referred       

Executed 726 skin examinations with 8% abnormalities 

detected and referred and 1 191 FotoFinder examinations to 

check for skin cancers with an approximate 23% 

abnormalities detected and referred

?

?

?

?

Women supporting women
stThrough the generous grant received by the 1  For Women 

Trust, valued at over R1 million, we were able to implement a 

12-month cervical cancer screening programme in the Eastern 

Cape as from February 2012. CANSA provided the mobile 

health unit which was made possible by the National Lottery 

Distribution Trust Fund (NLTDF). 

CANSA screened 3 700 clients, visited 71 different remote 

sites in Eastern Cape, resulting in 2 835 negative and 865 

positive Pap smears. A total of 896 of the patients were 

existing or tested HIV/ AIDS positive.

The screening was offered in conjunction with other screening 

tests like the HIV/AIDS rapid, blood sugar and blood pressure, 

thus providing a comprehensive health assessment as well as 

access to early detection and screening. 

Star Rating indicates following 

services: 

5 Stars - Cervical screening, breast examination, 

Prostate Specific Antigen (PSA) test, skin 

examination, lifestyle assessment, colorectal 

screening, wound care, stoma patient care and 

products, lymphoedema treatment, individual 

counselling, support groups, medical equipment – 

loan bank, Care Home accommodation for patients 

and CANSA TLC Lodge providing accommodation 

for parents whose children are undergoing oncology 

treatment

4 Stars - All of the above programmes excluding 

Care Home and CANSA TLC Lodge accommodation 

3 Stars and under (not listed) - Programmes 

exclude Care Home and CANSA TLC Lodge 

accommodation as well some of the above listed in 

5 according to the resources available at specific 

Care Centres

Care and Support

Survivorship programmes
Our Care Clinics based at our Care Centres country-wide, 

offer a comprehensive, preventative care and support 

programme for cancer survivors and caregivers according to a 

star rating:

MOBILE UNITMOBILE UNIT
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Care Homes

Support groups  

Coping Kits

We have 12 Care homes with a total of 327 beds across the 

country, which provide home-from-home accommodation to 

patients undergoing cancer treatment at oncology clinics far 

from their homes. Guests stay for an average of six weeks 

and receive meals and transport to and from treatment 

centres.

Care Homes by Numbers
CANSA welcomed 4 186 individual patients to our 12 CANSA 

Care Homes where they were served a total of 376 740 meals 

(average of a 6-week stay per patient). The occupancy rate 

was a monthly average of 85%

CANSA’s active support groups connect patients, survivors 

and their loved ones with others who have ‘been there’ for 

insight, moral support and understanding, hope and 

inspiration. Support groups include: Hoping is Coping; Sharing 

& Caring; Cancer specific groups; Stoma; Regular visits to 

oncology treatment centres offering support and care and 

Tough Living with Care (TLC) support groups that provide 

support to children with cancer and to families and loved 

ones, affected by cancer. 

Support Groups by Numbers
CANSA supported 7 943 cancer patients through our 110 

support groups and our 2 950 trained care and support 

volunteers 

The new revised and updated 2012 CancerCare Coping Kit 

(audio CD) provides practical advice to people newly 

diagnosed with cancer, their loved ones and caregivers to 

ease the cancer journey and to take control by making 

informed choices. Over 5 079 Coping kits were distributed in 

the past year - kits are available at any of the CANSA Care 

Centres country-wide.

Tough Living with Cancer (TLC) 
No child or family should have to face cancer on their own - 

our TLC programme is dedicated to providing tangible love, 

care and support to help children and families affected, cope 

with the effects of cancer. 

CANSA’s TLC Nicus Lodge at the Steve Biko Academic 

Hospital in Pretoria, has shown a huge demand and provides 

accommodation and support for parents or guardians whose 

children are undergoing treatment.

In June 2012, we launched the CANSA TLC Paediatric 

Oncology Ward at the Pietersburg Provincial Hospital in 

Polokwane. The facility, renovated to improve the care for 

cancer children receiving treatment, caters for 30 children as 

well as 24 lodging units for mothers, guardians and 

caregivers. The space also provides consulting rooms for a 

paediatric oncologist and includes a large outpatient area, play 

area, fully equipped kitchen and laundromat. 

CANSA is very grateful for the support received from 

workplaces, donors, churches and individuals to establish this 

unit - Pietersburg Provincial Hospital for their partnership and 

support – and especially the Industrial Development 

Corporation, Chemserve and the Kirsty Watts Foundation that 

provided sponsorship to the total value of R800 000. We 

extend our thanks also to Steiner, Defy, Rainbows and 

Smiles, Southern Sun, Gift of the Givers and Hoërskool 

Helderkruin.

Over 12 300 paediatric cancer patients and loved ones 

benefitted from TLC care and support.

Dr Oloko Wedi, Head of Pietersburg Provincial HospitalPlay area at the CANSA TLC Paediatric Oncology Ward
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Volunteer Programmes 
through partnerships

Phakamisa Navigation Programme

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

Phakamisa means to ‘uplift’ in Zulu and ‘elevate’ in Xhosa

This volunteer project that started in 2011 is aimed at 

empowering female volunteers (referred to as ‘navigators’) 

with knowledge of breast health and breast cancer to enable 

them to guide, aid and support breast cancer patients towards 

facilities for treatment. They also assist in establishing an 

effective referral system and follow-up management of breast 

cancer patients. Through Phakamisa, we able to contribute to 

skills development (accredited training and professional 

development courses for health care providers and volunteers 

in the breast cancer field accumulates credits for workshops 

attended).

Stakeholders include:

Astra Zeneca - project initiators and sponsors

Foundation for Professional Development - oversee course 

content and accreditation

Yonder - provide software for mobile phones

Breast Health Foundation – provide volunteers

Department of Health

CANSA – provide and train volunteers

Phakamisa by numbers
Volunteers enrolled for training - 359 

Total of women reached by navigators - 85 600

Group calls (public meetings) which consists of more than 

five people - 3678

Clinic visits - 3 281

Breast abnormalities/lumps detected of which 680 were 

malignant - 1 682

Patients navigated (supported) - 7 952

Movember 

Movember Metropolitan Integrated Care 

Programme

Navigation Programme

We are very grateful for the partnership with Movember and 

the support of the South African public. Movember has 

certainly triggered conversations between men regarding 

issues surrounding their health (particularly prostate and 

testicular cancers). The support enables us to extend and 

improve on cancer patient care and support programmes that 

focus solely on prostate and testicular cancer survivors. 

Although only implemented in February 2013, the Movember-

funded cancer care and support programmes are already seen 

to enhance and ensure a more individualised and need-

focussed care to prostate and testicular cancer patients. 

This is a comprehensive approach to care for prostate and 

testicular cancer survivors and their caregivers - it includes 

assessing their need in terms of care using the CANSA 

Dignity Tool as an online lifestyle assessment device as the 

basis for providing a personalised care programme. It’s 

conducted at CANSA Care Centres and Care Homes in the 

five main metro regions of South Africa. The programme 

integrates guidance on lifestyle changes e.g. nutrition, smoking 

cessation, sexual health and psycho-social support and 

counselling

The Movember Navigation Programme involves recruiting and 

training male volunteers (referred to as ‘navigators’) to assist 

prostate and testicular cancer survivors. The volunteers enable 

survivors to access the care they need from health and 

medical services, specifically public facilities, as quickly and 

efficiently as possible. They are also trained to give care that 

is appropriate and sensitive to each individual’s situation, 

culture and knowledge of cancer as well as cater to the needs 

of the families and caregivers. 

Movember Navigation TrainingPhakamisa Navigation Training
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Movember by numbers (Feb 2013 to June 2013)
Male volunteers recruited and trained, including 9 as leader 

volunteers - 96

Total of men reached by navigators - 26 987

Public meetings held by navigators - 413

Clinic visits by navigators - 342

Referrals for testing - 179

Referrals for treatment - 23

Patients navigated (supported) - 432

We provide a counselling service (via our toll-free line and 

online support system) dedicated to provide emotional and 

sexual advice and support to prostate and testicular cancer 

survivors. Dr Elna McIntosh, a sexologist is freely available to 

assist men affected by prostate and testicular cancer on 

matters of sexual health via advice4men@cansa.org.za or 

cansacounsellor@cansa.org.za all made possible via funds 

generated from the Movember campaign. In addition, support 

is provided by CANSA counsellors as well as other survivors 

on the existing Facebook group for survivors - ‘Champions of 

Hope’. 

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

Counselling support

CANSA Service Delivery thanks all our partners and 

sponsors who generously supported us financially and 

working with us during the year.

National Lottery Distribution Trust Fund

1st For Women Trust

Phakamisa (Astra Zeneca)

Yonder

Foundation for Professional Development (FPD)

Movember Foundation

Netcare

Board of Health Funders (BHF)

Hospice Palliative Care Association (HPCA)

Departments of Health, Social Development and Education 

at national and provincial levels

Reach For Recovery

A special thanks to Impala Platinum Mines who donated a 

house, valued at R900 000 to CANSA. A further donation was 

received of R450 000 from the James Kingston Trust and 

donation in-kind of more than R500 000 from Samancor (for 

the building of the new facilities and providing all building 

materials as well as a project manager). 

We now have eight additional offices added to the existing 

original building, housing employees for the CANSA 

Rustenburg Care Centre and its Care Home as well as Head 

Office. The new ‘home’ was opened in August 2012 as part of 

CANSA Care Week.

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

Our New Rustenburg ‘Home’

The Road Ahead 
?Expanding the service offerings to survivors by 
CANSA Care Centres

?Building referral systems and resource banks to 
increase the number of beneficiaries 

?Expanding the existing stoma business from that of 
mere product sales to include a comprehensive care 
and support complement

?Developing satellites clinic programmes to include 
more service offerings

?Capitalising and developing support groups for 
specific cancers 

?Promoting quality care at Care Homes situated at 5* 
Care Centres 

?Implementing a national roll-out of TLC care and 
support through our in-house facilities and community 
based offerings 

?Repositioning of our Home-Based care offering 
through a new programme involving accredited 
caregivers to complement the care provided by 
volunteers

?Extending CANSA’s visibility in rural and far rural 
areas utilising the mobile health units to provide 
cancer screening and health promotion
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Care and Support:
?Supported almost 7 493 cancer patients 

through our 110 support groups and our
2 950 trained care and support volunteers

?Visited and supported a monthly average 
of 3 045 patients at CANSA Care Centres 
and oncology units

?Provided treatment to an average of 44 
lymphoedema patients per month

?Counselled an average of 2 594 people 
per month

?Welcomed 4 186 individual patients to our 
12 CANSA Care Homes where they were 
served a total of 376 740 meals (average 
of a 6-week stay per patient)

?Facilitated Home Based Care for 14 213 
patients in the past year 

?96 Movember Navigators were trained - 
assisted and supported 432 testicular and 
prostate cancer patients

?359 Phakimisa volunteers trained - assisted 
and supported 7 952 breast cancer 
patients

?Made medical loan equipment available to 
4 278 people during the year

?Responded to 21 000 questions/requests: 
13 000 through telephonic contact and
8 000 by email

Cancer screening:
?Conducted 15 140 Pap smears for 

detection of cervical cancer and 
facilitated an additional 4 824 in 
partnership with the Department of 
Health (DOH)

?Performed 16 310 Breast 
examinations to detect breast lumps 
and facilitated an additional 1 726 in 
partnership with the DOH

?Conducted 9 773 PSA tests to detect 
prostate cancer and facilitated an 
additional 110 in partnership with 
DOH           

?Executed 726 skin examinations and 
1 191 FotoFinder examinations to 
check for skin cancers

1

26 27 28 29 30

252423
2221

2019

22
21

23 24 25 26 27

28 29

SUNDAY
MONDAY

TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY

1 2 3 4 5 6

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25 26 27 28

29 30 31

MOBILE UNITMOBILE UNIT

LOOK WHAT CANSA DID IN 2012/13

Education & Assistance:
?Approximately 1.2 million 

people were reached directly 
through 10 167 health talks 
and 1 600 exhibitions

?Distributed 570 000 information 
pamphlets and over 8 500 posters 
to promote our health awareness 
campaigns

Toll-free0800 22 66 22www.cansa.org.za

The National Lottery 

Distribution Trust Fund 

is a proud funder of

CANSA’s comprehensive

health programmes and 

advocacy initiatives

The 2009 World No-Tobacco Day 
Achievement Award by the WHO*

RECENT NATIONAL AWARDS INCLUDE:

The 2010 South African 
NGO Web Award by 
SANGONeT* 

• 2011 Winner of the
  Chartered Secretaries 
  Southern Africa Annual 
  Report Award: NGO Category
• 2012 Merit Award Winner 

Rated as SA's 3rd most 
trusted and admired NGO* 
by ASK AFRIKA Trust 
Barometer in 2011 

th(in 2010 we were 4 )

*NGO = Non-Government Organisation | SANGONet = South African NGO Network | WHO = World Health Organization
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Key Highlights
Awareness
?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

The CANSA Waterberg region, with the assistance of our 

Head of Research, Dr Carl Albrecht,  and the Executive 

Committee of the Women’s Agricultural Union (and their 

global organisation), launched a process to promote 

legislation involving carcinogens and children and have also 

extended their service reach to Thabazimbi

The CANSA Rustenburg region obtained a sponsorship from 

Master Trucking - they spray-painted their truck pink with 

CANSA branding to help raise awareness and also held a 

golf day that raised R100 000 

International Cancer Survivors’ Day was 

celebrated across the Unit in June 2012, 

reaching 841 survivors 

The CANSA Care Centres in Klerksdorp 

and Potchefstroom visited oncology units 

and presented small gifts to cancer 

patients to acknowledge them on 

International Cancer Survivors’ Day in 

June 2012 

The CANSA Soweto Care Centre 

survivors wrote messages of hope at a 

‘Make Your Mark’ function held at the 

CANSA Lukholweni Care Home as part 

of International Cancer Survivors’ Day – 

was filmed by SABC 2  

‘Make Your Mark’ also took place in the Western and 

Eastern Gauteng regions - survivors recorded their 

messages of hope at ‘Make Your Mark’ events,  after which 

they were presented with medals and spoiled with a 

pampering massage session 

In July 2012, the CANSA Vaal Care Centre held several 

talks and exhibitions at schools, taxi ranks and corporates 

to promote cancer awareness amongst the youth 

The CANSA Waterberg Care Centre ran an Anti-Tobacco 

poster competition in the Mokopane region and presented 

talks at schools in Bela-Bela and Modimolle 

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

The CANSA Soweto Care Centre hosted a very successful 

wellness day for Gold Reef City staff 

In November 2012, a Men’s Health Fun Run was hosted by 

the CANSA Vaal Care Centre to raise awareness of and 

funds for men’s health

On World Cancer Day on 4 February 2012, the CANSA 

Klerksdorp Care Centre utilised Toktokkie (Tap-Tap) to 

present talks at primary schools

The CANSA Waterberg Care Centre held talks and face 

painting activities at schools, raising awareness about 

childhood cancers to help reduce the risk of cancer as part 

of World Cancer Day in February 

An exhibition was held at the Klerksdorp Pick n Pay Centre 

- World Cancer Day stickers were 

distributed to shoppers to raise 

awareness 

Toktokkie (Tap-Tap) was used to raise 

awareness at schools in Gauteng for 

World Cancer Day in February 2012  -  

exhibitions were held and talks 

presented at various colleges

The CANSA Soweto Care Centre staff 

and volunteers visited several clinics in 

their region raising awareness and 

offering support to cancer patients as 

part of CANSA Care Week in August 

2012

The CANSA West Gauteng Care Centre hosted a function 

for survivors at the CANSA Keurboom Care Home and also 

held an exhibition at UNISA to highlight CANSA Care Week 

in August 2012

To celebrate CANSA Care Week, the CANSA Vaal Care 

Centre held a health camp at the Sedibeng College, 

reaching 1 500 students

Mobile Health Units doing screening tests in 
remote rural areas

Fun walk in Modimolle

‘Most 
Improved

Unit 
2011/2012' 

Winner of the
National Award 
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Early Detection and Screening
Using our Mobile Health Units, our ‘Well Woman Project’, 

in collaboration with the Department of Health, resulted in 

1 703 screening tests being carried out in remote rural 

areas of Northern Gauteng, Waterberg and Polokwane 

A generous donation of R140 000 to CANSA Vaal Triangle 

was received from Anglo American, which enabled 2 470 

Pap smears for cervical cancer screening and Prostate 

Specific Antigen (PSA) tests for prostate cancer screening 

to be done

The ‘Face of CANSA’ project launched by the CANSA West 

?

?

?

Gauteng Care Centre provided screening for skin cancer, 

Pap smears and PSA tests at workplaces in the West Rand 

regions of Gauteng

The CANSA Polokwane Care Centre continued to provide 

education and cancer screening in the remote rural areas of 

northern Limpopo through utilisation of their mobile health 

unit 

The CANSA East Gauteng Care Centre participated in the 

Momentum 94.7 cycle race - they performed 890 PSA 

tests for prostate cancer screening and raised 

R20 000

?

?

Dr Oloko Wedi, Head of Pietersburg Provincial 
Hospital, surrounded by nurses at the opening of 
the CANSA TLC Paediatric Oncology Ward in June 2012

TheTLC Paediatric Oncology Ward includes space for 
consulting rooms for a paediatric oncologist and a 
large out patient area, play area, fully equipped 
kitchen and laundromat

Care and Support
Polokwane region received 12 new beds in our Theunis 

Fichardt Hospitium which provides very ill cancer patients 

with excellent nursing care - sponsored by Maropa Casino, 

Rotary Club, South African Society of Physiotherapy, 

Meropa Casino, Trysa Burger as well as Eileen and Delmari 

Schoffield

We launched our CANSA Tough Living with Cancer (TLC) 

Paediatric Oncology Ward at the Pietersburg Provincial 

Hospital in Polokwane in June 2012 - t

North Gauteng extended their service reach with a satellite 

clinic in Pretoria Gardens; CANSA Tipuana Care Home has 

?

?

?

benefited hugely from donations from this community 

First National Bank provided furniture to several CANSA 

Care Centres in our Unit, assisting us to portray a 

professional and smart image  

The CANSA Care Centre in Alberton launched a support 

group within the South African Airways’ technical division

During CANSA Care Week the CANSA East Gauteng Care 

Centre launched a support group sponsored by SAA and 

Fruit and Veg City in Springs

Adventure Bootcamp raised an amount of R155 000 to 

upgrade the CANSA Keurboom Care Home in Belgravia

?

?

?

?

Symposia

?

Several symposia were hosted in the Northern Business Unit:

In Potchefstroom, their annual symposium was held on 14 

July 2012 in partnership with North West University 

Business School and Wilmed Park Oncology Centre - 

several specialists presented talks on topics ranging from 

cancers affecting women genetics, hereditary factors, the 

treatment of female cancers, as well as health laws and 

ethics

?

?

thIn Alberton, on 7  December 2012, the focus was on Men’s 

Health with guest speaker, Dr Matlala, a Urologist from The 

Glynnwood Hospital; prostate and testicular cancer survivors 

also gave short talks and PSA tests were conducted 

The CANSA Central Gauteng Care Centre hosted their 
stsymposium titled ‘21  Century Practical Approach to Cancer’ 

discussing topics regarding psychological support and 

radiation oncology; survivors also gave talks to provide 

insights into their journey with cancer

74



Fund Development
?

?

?

?

?

?

Our CANSA North Gauteng Care Centre raised awareness 

as well as funds at the ‘Blou Bulletjie’ rugby event at Loftus 

Versfeld in March 2013  

The following Relay communities raised R3 921 503 – East 

Rand, Bela-Bela, Carltonville, Vaal Triangle, Klerksdorp, 

Lephalale, Louis Trichardt, Mokopane, Polokwane, 

Phalaborwa, Pretoria, Potchefstroom, Roodepoort,  

Rustenburg/Brits, Tzaneen, and Westonaria

CANSA East Rand repeated its record-breaking feat of 

the previous year by once again generating more than 

R1 million at this year’s Relay For Life event – another 

magnificent performance

The Global Relay For Life Heroes of Hope survivorship 

initiative involves the selection of ‘Heroes of Hope’ from  

the global Relay participating countries – Kedibone Bonoko, 

a cancer survivor from Gauteng, was awarded this great 

honour in 2012 

Sanlam Cancer Challenge was well supported with 83 clubs 

participating in 100 golf days, generating an income of 

R994 871

The CANSA West Gauteng Care Centre hosted a very 

successful annual Bachelor/Bachelorette fundraising event 

with Copperstone Productions and raised R89 000 in 

November 2012

We formed 157 partnerships aimed at increasing donations 

and to deliver services in the workplace.

Partnerships

Special Thanks
We would like to thank our sponsors without whom we 

will not be able to provide our valuable service to the 

community:

Absa Bank, Anglo American, AngloGold Ashanti, Benoni 

Rotary Anns, Bidvest Steiner, Cartrack, Clover, Concorde 

Travel, Dura Foods, Enterprise, First National Bank, 

Granor Passi, Guvon Hotels, Hotel 224, House of Asante 

Spa, Lifemed, Limpopo Toyota, Mamelodi Sundowns, 

Mc Carthy Polokwane, Mercurius Motors Polokwane, 

Meropa Casino, Mike’s Kitchen, Momentum Life, Motor 

Finance Corporation, MTN, Oasis Water, Ocean Basket, 

Pick n Pay, President Hypermarkets, Rand Merchant 

Bank- Teresa Wilson, Sasco, Specsavers, The Cycle Hub, 

Thobela FM, UASA the Trade Union, Uitkyk Vleismark, 

Welthagen Eggs, Wesbank, and Woolworths.

Shopping Centres, workplaces and volunteers that hosted 

Shavathon events: 

ABI; Aquaonline; Arup; Balfour Park; Bas 2; Benmore 

Gardens; Brightwater Commons; Broadacres; Bryanston 

Mall; Business Connection; Carswald Spar; Cedar Square; 

CellC;  Chili Lane; Coachmans; Cresta Shopping Centre; 

Deutsche Bank; Discovery; Fourways Crossing; Fourways 

High Dainfern College; Fourways Mall; Gathering of the 

Clans; Hair 21; Heathway; Hobby X; Killarney Mall; King 

School Bryanston; King School Robin Hills; Leapfrog; 

Lifestyle Centre; Lonehill Shopping Centre; Massmart; 

Meat Company; Morningside; Northgate Shopping Centre; 

Norwood Mall; Ogilvy Jhb; Plumblink; Rawson Properties; 

Ridge school; Rosebank college; Sabmiller; Sandton City 

Shopping Centre; Sanridge; South African Schools Rowing 

champs; St David Inanda; St Stithians and Summit 

College; The Firs; The King Edward School; The Wedge; 

University of Johannesburg; Victory Park; Willows 

Pre Primary School; Wits University and Woodmead Retail 

Park
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Volunteer Snapshot

Fund Development
R14 522 100

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?80 Liaison Committees

?437 Health Programme volunteers

?533 Care and Support volunteers

?36 Administration volunteers

?1 097 Fund Development volunteers

?97 Phakimisa Navigators to assist with support and care 

to breast cancer patients

?30 Movember Navigators to assist with support and care 

to testicular and prostate cancer patients

The following main events were successfully championed 

with the help of our dedicated volunteers:

CANSA Relay For Life - R3 921 503

CANSA Shavathon - R305 467

Sanlam Cancer Challenge - R994 871

Cuppa For CANSA - R516 086

Teledonations - R2 708 675

Toktokkie (Tap-Tap) - R148 258

Breast Health Walks - R24 075

Jail n Bail - R439 606

Special regional events - R2 704 171

Healthy Living - R10 239

 

Look what CANSA Northern Business 
Unit did in 2012/2013
Health Awareness by Numbers
?

?

?

?

?

?

Screening by Numbers

?

?

?

?

?

?

Support by Numbers
?

?

?

?

?

?

232 286 people were reached with 2 266 talks on cancer 

awareness

80 012 people were reached through 398 cancer 

awareness exhibitions, health days and health camps

13 356 people were reached with 164 talks on screening 

and early detection

15 188 people were reached through 86 screening and 

early detection exhibitions

A total of 111 490 youth were educated 

at 330 schools and educational facilities

251 351 cancer awareness leaflets were 

distributed

We conducted screening - some in 

partnership with the Department of 

Health (DoH) - at Care Clinics 

based at CANSA Care Centres as 

well as in remote areas using our mobile 

health units 

2 936 Pap smears for cervical cancer plus 1 559  with 

DoH

3 956 Clinical Breast Examinations to detect breast lumps 

plus 107 with DoH

3 300 Prostate Specific Antigen (PSA) tests to detect 

prostate cancer 

222 FotoFinder examinations

1 130 lifestyle risk assessments conducted

On average 3% abnormalities were detected in the 

total screenings

Patient care provided to 19 371 cancer 

survivors and their loved ones 

3 078 survivors were cared for at home

(home-based care)

1 864 patients were accommodated 

at the five CANSA Care Homes, 

TLC Nicus Lodge & Paediatric 

Oncology Ward and Hospitium

(16 865 bed-days)

37 support groups established and

maintained - attended by 2 367 

survivors

Medical equipment and other assistive 

devices were made available to 1 789

people

3 797 patients were supported at 

oncology clinics whilst receiving 

cancer treatment

MOBILE UNITMOBILE UNIT

Toll-free0800 22 66 22www.cansa.org.za
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Key Highlights

Awareness
?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

The CANSA Bethlehem Care Centre moved offices in June 

2012 and is now more visible and accessible on the 

premises of the oncology section of Mediclinic Hoogland 

During August 2012, the Bethlehem region launched a 

Mobile Health Unit in the remote area of the Tseki Village, 

giving talks to approximately 100 people on the importance 

of cancer screening 

uThungulu CANSA Care staff presented International 

Cancer Survivors’ Day in June 2012 at the Tsogo Sun Hotel 

in Ulundi with cancer survivors as guests - for some male 

survivors it was the first time ever that they had spoken 

openly about their disease - the late Cenessa Stork as the 

CANSA Relay For Life Global Hero of Hope was the guest 

speaker

Bethlehem hosted a Survivors’ Tea at The Loft Guesthouse 

in June 2012, attended by 25 survivors - with breast cancer 

survivor, Louisa Groenewald,  as the guest speaker 

In Welkom, cancer survivors, friends and families planted 46 

rose trees at the CANSA Care Centre as symbols of HOPE 

on International Cancer Survivors’ Day with Nick Hagemeier, 

a bladder cancer survivor of six years, as the guest speaker

At the Survivors’ gathering in Pietermaritzburg during June 

2012, a local GP and dietician gave interesting and 

informative presentations

In June 2012, International Cancer Survivors’ Day 

celebrations were combined with Youth programmes at an 

exhibition held at the Mimosa Mall in Bloemfontein, where 

talks were given and pamphlets handed out in partnership 

with the Department of Health (DoH) and local South Africa 

National Blood Service (SANBS)

In the Phuthaditjhaba district of Bethlehem, a Community 

Wellness Day was held by the National Department of 

Health in conjunction with CANSA, attracting 1 000 people 

and including the Deputy Minister of Health, Dr Gwen 

Ramokgopa

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

Staff and volunteers from the Bethlehem region joined the 

traffic department of the Free State at Reitz during their 

annual ‘Arrive Alive’ Campaign, utilising roadblocks where 

vehicles were stopped for a routine inspection – a total of 

600 sunscreen samples and 700 pamphlets were handed 

out

The CANSA Bloemfontein Care Centre, with the support of 

the Rotarians, hosted a Prostate Specific Antigen (PSA) 

drive in December 2012 - 44 men were tested in Ladybrand 

and 25 men in Aliwal North 

In the Bethlehem region training and talks were provided to 

over 7 650 people in July 2012 regarding our CANSA 

Tough Living Cancer (TLC) programme 

A new liaison committee was established during the year in 

Chatsworth to increase CANSA’s presence in this area 

(Durban Region)

During CANSA Care Week in August 2012, health drive 

was hosted aimed at cancer survivors and caregivers in an 

effort to improve care and support provided, exhibitions 

were set up at libraries in Newcastle, Vryheid, Dundee, 

Ladysmith, Madadeni and at Majuba College and health 

talks held at the Lennoxton Library to the Newcare 

Women’s Circle - free PSA screenings were offered in 

Newcastle, Ladysmith and Vryheid reaching a total of 1 660 

people 

As part of CANSA Care Week in August 2012, survivors, 

volunteers and staff wrote messages of HOPE on canvas 

material in the Durban as part of the ‘Make Your Mark’ 

event – 2 800 were reached through talks and exhibits and 

counselling, and further awareness was achieved by means 

of radio talks 

The Underberg Liaison Committee in the Pietermaritzburg 

region presented a ‘Pink and Blue’ day at their Primary 

School, hosting a mini Sprayathon and promoting SunSmart 

awareness as part of CANSA Care Week in August 2012

The CANSA uThungulu Care Centre hosted a Wellness Day 

in Mtunzini on 29 September 2012 raising great awareness 

for CANSA as well as R10 000 in funding

Mobile Health Unit in action in Illovo, Pietermaritzburg The annual Breast Cancer Awareness Walk in 
Bloemfontein
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Early detection and screening
The CANSA Durban Care Centre conducted 230 Prostate 

Specific Antigen (PSA) tests with Abbott Laboratories at the 

Ethekwini Heart Hospital during June 2012 - 31 

abnormalities were detected and referred for treatment

The CANSA Bloemfontein Care Centre implemented a new 

cervical cancer screening project in Thaba Nchu area at the 

Path Care Depot in March 2013 - screenings are done by 

appointment every second Saturday

Talks and screenings took place at various municipal clinics 

in the Bloemfontein area,  reaching 470 people in the 

Mangaung municipal district

?

?

?

?

?

In August 2012, our CANSA South Coast Care Centre 

offered a Women’s Health cancer screening package at the 

low fee of R100 – a total of 198 Pap smears and 247 breast 

examinations were performed and the project generated an 

income of over R13 000

The Amajuba (Newcastle) region held a Men’s Health Walk 

in December commencing at the Gazette Newspaper - a 

short talk was given to over 150 men, women and children 

to emphasise the importance of screening 

Care and support
Between 15 to 17 patients receive chemotherapy on a 

weekly basis at the CANSA Helen Ludwig Care Centre in 

uThungulu in partnership with Ngwelezane Hospital 

In the Welkom region, patient support groups were 

established in Kroonstad, Vierfontein and Parys 

After completing a course at the University of Free State, 

the CANSA Care Clinic Managers from Bloemfontein and 

Welkom are now qualified Stoma Therapists 

In September 2012 the Care Clinic at the CANSA 

Pietermaritzburg Care Centre was reopened on completion 

of renovations that were sponsored by cancer survivor Lolly 

Stuart and other individuals who raised R50 000 for the 

refurbishment

At Witbank the new CANSA Care Clinic was also opened 

while CANSA Lowveld Care Centre established a satellite 

?

?

?

?

?

Care Centre in Lydenburg 

The Phakamisa Navigation Programme was rolled out in six 

regions, adding value for volunteers and assisting with care 

and support for breast cancer patients

The Movember Navigator Programme was launched – 31 

male volunteers were trained in Welkom, Durban and 

Bloemfontein to provide care and support to prostate and 

testicular cancer survivors

In July 2012 the CANSA Durban Care Centre staff attended 

an event at the Clairwood Hospital, visiting the paediatric 

wing together with the Chatsworth Youth Council Bikers on 

Nelson Mandela Day - 50 children received toys 

A total of 12 new TLC volunteers were trained to help 

provide care and support to children and families affected 

by cancer at the Albert Luthuli Hospital 

?

?

?

?

Fund Development
?

?

?

The Thaba Nchu breast cancer walk held on 20 October 

2012 was the first for this rural community - with almost 50 

people taking part and raising over R3 000 

The popular annual breast cancer awareness walk in 

Bloemfontein drew 1 300 entrants - the theme was ‘Fight 

like a Girl’ and R174 000 was raised

The Lowveld region expanded their Debutante project to 

include ‘Finishing School’ skills and raised over R300 000

?Our Relay communities raised R2 730 928 – Barberton, 

Bethlehem, Bloemfontein, Bothaville, Bronkhortspruit, 

Drakensberg, Durban, Eshowe, Estcourt, Ficksburg, 

Frankfort, Groblersdal, Harrismith, Heilbron, Komatipoort, 

Ladybrand, Lydenburg, Middelburg, Nelspruit, Newcastle, 

Parys, Phoenix, Pietermaritzburg, Port Shepstone, Recess – 

Hillcrest, Reitz, Reservoir Hills, Secunda, Senekal, 

Viljoenskroon, Winterton, Witbank, Youth FS, Zululand 

(Richards Bay)

Promoting SunSmart awareness in Welkom 
The Black Bra Ladies Night held in Bloemfontein
initiated by the Round Table
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A health awareness talk and screening in the 
Mangaung district

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

Relay For Life Pietermaritzburg was dedicated to the 

memory of Community Mobiliser, George Forder who 

tragically passed away in March 2012 following a motor 

accident - 72 teams entered and R61 700 was raised

The community of Hillcrest hosted its first Relay For Life 

Recess in July 2012 - aimed at making schools more 

healthier and cancer-smart

The Global Relay For Life Heroes of Hope survivorship 

initiative involves the selection of ‘Heroes of Hope’ from the 

global Relay participating countries – cancer survivors, Rita 

Naidoo (Durban), Jana du Plessis (Bloemfontein) and 

Thembi Ngwenya (Nelspruit) were awarded this great 

honour in 2012 

Bethlehem, Bloemfontein and Welkom regions represented 

CANSA at the well-known annual Agricultural exhibit, 

NAMPO, in Bothaville from 14 to 18 May 2012, raising 

R30 000

A Cuppa For CANSA event with the theme ‘Food of the 

World’ was hosted in the Bethlehem Metropolitan Centre 

during September 2012 with 200 guests attending -  

traditional meals from six different countries were served

Sanlam Cancer Challenge was well supported with 134 

clubs participating in 134 golf days generating an income of 

R761 301

Our CANSA uThungulu Care Centre hosted a ‘Tea on the 

Terrace’ event and raised R28 000 to help provide care and 

support to cancer patients in that community 

The Rooi Rose Tea, held for the first time in the Free State 

in September 2012, was attended by 150 ladies at Illanga 

Estate, Bloemfontein, and raised almost R32 000 

Mondi paper hosted a fun run in uThungulu in April 2012 

and donated R21 000 

At the Mara Theron Voortrekker Venue in Bloemfontein, 

Action Cricket learners played cricket from sunset to sunrise 

and raised R49 000 - the event has been running for 17 

years with more than 500 learners participating every year

Most workplaces in Ficksburg took part in a ‘Sprayathon’ 

raising R18 000 in July 2012 - all wore purple every Friday 

in the run-up to their Relay event to create awareness 

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

A first-time Sanlam Cancer Challenge golf day was hosted 

in July 2012 at the Matjhabeng Golf and Development Club 

in the Lejweleputswa (Welkom) region and raised R5 800

The ‘Black Bra Ladies Night’ held in Bloemfontein in 

October 2012 was initiated by the Round Table 25 - health 

education information was provided and R15 000 raised

A ‘Christmas in July’ function held in Lydenburg was 

attended by 300 people, the entry fee being a Christmas gift 

for a child living with cancer

The Malelane region hosted a ‘Madam and Eve’ event in 

July 2012 – attended by 65 guests and accompanied by 

their domestic workers 

Port Shepstone hosted the first ‘Donkey Derby’ and raised 

R45 000

Stipends for volunteers now include the Xhariep community, 

due to the expansion of the existing partnership with the 

Department of Health in the Free State 

Relay For Life Coordinator for the CANSA Bloemfontein 

Care Centre, Tania McKay, won the 2012 CANSA National 

Employee of the Year Award

The Central Business Unit has 309 strategic partnerships. 

Through our media and radio partnerships we were able to 

carry out 119 radio talks and enjoy printed media articles that 

carried various health messages. 

The CANSA Katleho Care Home received a grant from the 

Social Development and Health departments for patient care. 

CANSA’s Highveld Care Centre partnership with Greenside 

Colliery mine, Anglo Coal was strengthened with a donation of 

R16 000.

The CANSA Welkom Care Centre has a partnership with Blue 

Leave Medical Premium utilising their products for 

lymphoedema management and is assisted by a local 

physiotherapist, Des Fourie for the treatment and referrals of 

lymphoedema patients.

Partnerships

Survivors Lap CANSA Relay For Life Pietermaritzburg
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Furcey, MokkaModels, Moments of Grace, Mona Maharaj, 

Mondi, Moths Leadswingers Shellhole, Mr Nicolas Joseph, Mr 

Roy Sukdhev, Mr Saeed, Mr. Ludi Neethling, Mr. Tony 

Moutsoyannis, Mrs Annie Pillay, Mrs Haween Hudd, Mrs Joan 

Deare, Mrs Motie, Mrs Phatlane, MSC College, Muirheads, 

NAMPO Management, Nashua Bethlehem, Natasha C, 

Newcastle Majuba Rotary, Newcastle Mall, Newcastle Private 

Hospital, Newcastle Womans Circle, Newcastle, Newspaper 

Secunda, Noelene Michell, Nomads Golfing Association, 

Northern Natal Trader, Norwegian Settlers Church, Nu Form, 

Onkology Department Dihlabeng Hospital, Oval Shopping 

Centre, Pathcare Bloemfontein and Bethlehem, Pick a Pay 

Huttenhoogte, Pick n Pay Fleurdal, Pietermaritzburg Girls High 

School, Port Edward, Port Shepstone High, Port Shepstone, 

Protea Hotel Hluhluwe, Psitron, Queen Moloko, Radha 

Govindsamy, Radio Lesedi, Radio OFM, Ragland, Raven 

Glass, RBCT, RBM, Reaching Out Sisters of St Annes 

Catholic Church, RFL Coronation Park Barberton, RFL 

Komatipoort Sportsklub, RFL Laerskool Nelspruit, RFL 

Hoerskool Lydenburg, Richards Bay Rugby Club, Ridge Time 

& Echo, Riverside Mall, Rosestad, Rotary Clubs of 

Morningside, Rotary International, Round Table International, 

Round Table, Rudi Weis and Steffen Weis, Sages Golf, Sages 

Upper & Lower South Coast, Sam’s Florist, San Lameer, 

Sappi, SASOL, Save Cash and Carry, Schoonhoven 

Enterprises, Scottburgh High, Scottburgh, Scribante, Seadoone 

Mall, Selborne, Shelly Centre, Shoprite Checkers, Sign Centre, 

Simon Read, Sonpark Boulevard Centrum, SOUL Youth 

Group, South Coast Fever, South Coast Herald, South Coast 

Mall, Southbroom, St Cyprians Anglican Church, St Helena 

Hospital, Welkom, Suid Natal High School, Susan Mare, 

Sushie Munsamy from Independent News Papers, Tata Steel, 

Tempe, The church of Jesus Christ of latter day Saints, The 

Seventh Day Adventist Church, Theoff Botha & Michelle 

Carless, Three Cities Hotel Group, Three Cities Hotel Group, 

Time–Freight, UFS Oncology Fund, Umdoni, Umfolozi Casino 

& Hotel Resorts, Umkomaas, Versatile Interiors, Volksblad, 

Volksrust Rusoord, Vryheid Chamber of Commerce, Vrystaat 

Newspaper, Vrystaat Onkologie Trust, Westville Baptist 

Church Richards Bay Minerals, Wild Coast Sun, Willowton Oil, 

Zululand Observer.

 

We would like to thank our sponsors without whom we will not 

be able to provide our valuable service to the community:

ABH, African Methodistepiscede, Amanzimtoti, Ampath 

Laboratory, Andre Venter and ITEC, Angela Fraenkel, Aniki 

van der Merwe, Anthony Dewing, Barberton Chemist, 

Beekman Brothers, Bees Ink, Beneden Wilke, Berea and 

Reservoir Hills, Berlesell, BHP Billiton, Black Rock Casino, 

Build It, Builder’s Express, CANCARE, Caxton Press, Coca 

Cola, Community Chest, Community Service Groups Rotary 

Lions, Curves, Dairy Belle, Dawid and Michelle Apperley, 

Deborah Foord and Wandsbeck Scouts, Deon van Rensburg, 

Departement of Social Development, Department Public 

Works, Departmentt of Health, Dept of Correctional Services 

Athletics Club, DHL Nelspruit, Diamond Express, Dirks Meat 

Market, Dischem, Dr Durga, Dr Hans Jekel, Pretoria, Dr N 

Singh, Dr Thekisho Tsatsi, Dr. Booyens, Dr. Khan, Dr. 

Roscher, Dr’s Nel and Cachet, Drakensberg School, Equra 

Health Human Capital- Icon, ES and LC Manufacturing, ESL 

Plumbing, Eslamic Educational Centre, Factory Plaza, 

Fednissan, Ferro Crome Middelburg, Ferro Metals Witbank, 

Fluschwell Plumbers, Foskor, Frere Rd Presbyterian Church, 

Galleria Mall Scottburgh Mall, Get It Magazine, Glenco Spar, 

Global Electrical, Graham Hack & Alan Branfield, Harcourts 

Ladysmith, Harding, Harriet Cebukhulu, Hattingh Heights, 

Henk Kearney, Hervormde Kerk Nelspruit, Hibiscus Mall, 

Hochland Auto Bethlehem, Hoërskool Erasmus, Hoogland 

Medi Clinic, Hopelands Cancer Clinic, Ilanga Mall, Imbali 

Funeral Furnishers, Innibos, Isililio Manyani IBM, Jaco 

Odendaal, Jammo, Javed Kameel Catering and Hire, Jolly 

Grubber, King Edward Hospital, Kokstad, Koos Schoonraad, 

KZN Chemicals, Ladybrand Primary School, Ladysmith 

Gazette, Ladysmith Herald, Lauren Walford- Berea Mail, 

Lavender Blue, Look Good feel Better, Lowvelder Newspaper, 

Lydenburg Mediese Sentrum, Lynda Greyling, Majuba College, 

Maluti Newspaper, Mareina Rautenbach, Margate, Marna de 

Witt, Matatiele, Mayor of Newcastle – Afzul Rehman, MBB 

Consulting, MBPromark, Medi Clinic Bloemfontein, Medi Clinic 

Newcastle, Medi Clinic Welkom, Media 24, MEGCHEM, Mike 

Special Thanks
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Volunteer Snapshot
?

?

?

?

?

?

?

Fund Development
R9 014 793

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

119 Liaison Committees 

392 Health Programmes volunteers

731 Care and Support volunteers

24 Administration volunteers

620 Fund Development volunteers

94 Phakamisa Navigators to assist with support and 

care to breast cancer patients

32 Movember Navigators to assist with support and 

care to testicular and prostate cancer patients

The following main events were successfully championed 

with the help of our dedicated volunteers:

CANSA Relay For Life – R2 730 928

CANSA Shavathon - R1 289 766

Sanlam Cancer Challenge – R761 301

Cuppa For CANSA – R675 922

Teledonations – R714 360

Toktokkie – R213 767

Breast Health Walks – R209 490

Jail n Bail – R591 531

Special regional events - R1 756 889

Flowers for Hope - R62 094

Healthy Living - R8 745 

Look what CANSA Central Business 
Unit did in 2012/2013
Health Awareness by Numbers
?

?

?

?

?

?

Screening by Numbers

?

?

?

?

?

?

Support by Numbers
?

?

?

?

?

?

207 556 people were reached with 4 455 talks on 

cancer awareness

229 882 people were reached through 198 cancer 

awareness exhibitions, health days and health camps

43 932 people were reached with 231 talks on 

screening and early detection

15 247 people were reached through 69 

screening and early detection exhibitions

A total of 76 733 youth were educated 

at 263 schools and educational facilities

200 554 cancer awareness leaflets were 

distributed

We conducted screening - some in 

partnership with the Department of 

Health (DoH) - at Care Clinics 

based at CANSA Care Centres as 

well as in remote areas using our 

mobile health units 

8 365 Pap smears for cervical cancer plus 2 581 with 

DoH

7 564 Clinical Breast Examinations to detect breast 

lumps plus 349 with DoH

2 372  Prostate Specific Antigen (PSA) tests to detect 

prostate cancer 

155 skin examinations and  281 FotoFinder 

examinations

73 lifestyle risk assessments conducted

On average 3% abnormalities were detected in the total 

screenings

Patient care provided to 12 623 

cancer survivors and their loved ones 

5 887 Survivors were cared for at 

home (home-based care)

1 325 patients were accommodated 

at the three CANSA Care Homes 

(28 567 bed-days)

37 support groups were established 

and maintained - attended by 

2 061 survivors

Medical equipment and other 

assistive devices were made available 

to 328 people

15 865 patients were supported at 

oncology clinics whilst receiving 

cancer treatment

MOBILE UNITMOBILE UNIT

Toll-free0800 22 66 22www.cansa.org.za
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SBU

CBU

NBU

SOUTHERN
BUSINESS UNIT
(SBU)

Merger of Eastern, Western and
Northern Cape Provinces
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Key Highlights
Awareness
?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

Our General Manager: Service Delivery, was appointed to 
serve on the Provincial Healthy Living Workgroup of the 
Western Cape Premier committee and subcommittee for 
workplace programmes on Healthy Living - the aim is to pilot 
the promotion of healthy nutritional catering for meetings, 
smoking-related interventions and regular exercise in two 
Government Departments

The Western and Eastern Cape Department of Social 
Development continued to subsidise eight Social Workers’ 
posts, allowing the continuation of service delivery in these 
specific areas

In July 2012, 18 ladies from Phillipi in the Cape region 
received health education training and started educating 
women at clinics and churches in the area 
on a monthly basis  

In Amatole (East London) blankets made 
from knitted squares were handed out to 
27 survivors as part of International 
Cancer Survivors’ Day in June 2012

The CANSA Kimberley/Karoo Care Centre 
held a ‘sop en broodjie’ (soup and rolls) 
function in June 2012 for 30 survivors – 
inspirational poems were rendered and 
survivors also wrote messages of hope for 
other survivors - to be used at exhibitions 
and talks 

On International Survivors’ Day in June 
2012, Springbok/Namaqua volunteers, 
families and friends lit candles at churches 
in memory of or in celebration of loved 
ones in Okiep, volunteers did door-to-door visits to survivors, 
offering messages of hope and small gifts

In the Cape Metro region, World No Tobacco Day (31 May) 
was highlighted in partnership with the Department of Health 
(DoH) and the City of Cape Town, for parents and teachers in 
various crèches in the area - focus was on the amended 
legislation which prohibits smoking in vehicles when children 
under the age of 12 are present 

Kimberley/Karoo region ran a two-week programme in July 
2012 for Griquas Cricket Union, educating the youth about the 
dangers of Hubbly Bubbly, leading a balanced lifestyle and 
being SunSmart – a further 18 local companies were reached 
with this campaign

In Upington, an Anti-Tobacco awareness drive was promoted 
by youth teams which had entered for the local Relay For Life 
event held on 31 May 2012

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

The Women’s Health Campaign was launched in East London 
during October 2012 with a ‘Pink Beach Walk’ along the 
Nahoon Beach 

Road shows promoting health awareness for women and men 
were held in October and November 2012 in collaboration with 
Eskom - resulting in a total of nine presentations to Eskom 
departments in East London, King William’s Town, Alice, 
Tsolo,  Mqanduli,  Queenstown and Butterworth

Amatole (East London) region promoted health awareness 
through 10 radio interviews which included eight talks on 
Women’s Health

A soccer game was held on 16 June 2012 between two 
schools for the disabled, in partnership with De Beers, 
Department of Tourism, Mamelodi Sundowns and the 
Galeshewe Cluster, utilising the opportunity to share health 
information 

Toktokkie (Tap-Tap) and kids from Liewe Heksie Day Care, 
Fruit Bear Buddies and Sunflowers 
participated in a health awareness walk in 
Upington in August 2012

During June 2012, Concordia youth from 
the Springbok/ Namaqua region presented 
health talks, focussing on childhood 
cancers, cancer warning signs and leading 
a balanced lifestyle - two plays with breast 
and testicular cancer as themes, were also 
staged 

A ‘CANSA on the Move for the Youth’ 
event was hosted at Dan Qeqe Stadium 
(Port Elizabeth) in June 2012 where 10 
high schools from Zakhele and Zwide 
areas participated - brain cancer survivor, 
Simnonelele Buswa shared his experience 
and the stigma attached to the disease 

and thanked CANSA for the support he received 

The CANSA Kimberley/Karoo Care Centre, in partnership with 
the Kimberley Big Hole Museum, launched a VIP Survivors’ 
Membership programme and raised awareness about cancer 
myths and facts 

Dale College in King William’s Town highlighted CANSA Care 
week in August 2012 where learners wore pink to highlight 
cancer awareness and acknowledge cancer survivors -  
Toktokkie (Tap-Tap) entertained learners in grades one to 
three, while survivor Bill Renwick (who had a laryngectomy) 
addressed the boys on the dangers of tobacco

At the rugby derby held in August 2012 between Dale 
College’s 1st rugby team (wearing pink strips) against old 
rivals Selborne College, R25 000 was raised and healthy 
living talks were given

‘Best 
Performing

Unit 
2011/2012' 

Winner of the
National Award 

Global Relay For Life Heroes of Hope - Obie Woolward 
from Worcester and Kobus Smit from Mossel Bay Toktokkie visiting the Van Kervel school in George
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Early detection and screening
The Boland/Overberg region educated 13 students from the 
local National Institute for the Deaf College on screening 
and prevention of prostate and testicular cancer 

In September 2012 Dordrecht Hospital, in partnership with 
CANSA, launched a cancer screening campaign which was 
rolled out in six surrounding clinics - screening included Pap 
smears, breast examinations, Prostate Specific Antigen 
(PSA) tests, as well as other health tests. Abnormal breast 
screening results were forwarded to the newly-established 
Breast Clinic at Queenstown’s Frontier Hospital

In May 2012, Toktokkie (Tap-Tap) introduced our service to 
the Mthatha community where Pap smears, breast and skin 
examinations were also done

?

?

?

Care and support
In June 2012, Tough Living with Cancer (TLC) volunteers 
and staff of Cape Metro delivered blankets to adults, 
children and teens hospitalised for cancer at Tygerberg 
Hospital – with the children also receiving  pyjamas and 
clothing  

A total of 33 males were trained as Movember Navigators 
to provide comprehensive support to survivors of prostate 
and testicular cancer in Cape Town

A total of 120 Phakamisa Navigators were trained to provide 
care and support to breast cancer survivors in various 
regions

During September 2012, the CANSA Dwarsrivier ‘Hoping is 
Coping’ support group, comprising of volunteers and 
survivors, hosted their annual Cuppa event with a Country 
and Western theme – attended by over 160 people

A fun-filled party as part of the TLC programme on the 
West Coast was held on 9 August 2012 at Langebaan for 
20 children living with cancer and their parents - the event 
was used to promote support groups for families and 
children affected by cancer

?

?

?

?

?

Symposia

?

?

Fund Development
?

Two symposia were hosted in the Southern Business Unit:

CANSA West Coast region held an event attended by over 
130 people in September 2012, where guest speakers being 
CANSA CEO, Martin Combrinck (Laughter for Africa), and 
dietician Megan Klutz - Tracey Derrick, a well-known local 
photographer, also shared her breast cancer story; our 
publication Life is Beautiful was promoted with

The region further hosted a five-day programme (from 30 
July to 3 August 2012) in partnership with the Department 
of Science and Technology, at Galeshwe Campus in 
Kimberley, on chemotherapy and radiation, reaching 350 
students

Our Relay communities raised R5 797 877 – Aggeneys, 
Athlone, Beaufort West, Breederivier (Robertson and 
surrounding towns), Caledon, Cederberg (Clanwilliam and 
surrounding towns), Diamond Coast (Kleinzee and 
surrounding towns), East London, George, Hantam/Karoo 
(Calvinia and surrounding towns), Heidelberg, Helderberg 
(Somerset West/Strand), Jeffreys Bay, Kakamas, Kalahari 
(Rietfontein and surrounding towns), Kathu, Kimberley, 
Kuruman, Malmesbury, Mamré/Atlantis/Pella, Mitchell’s 
Plain, Moorreesburg, Mossel Bay, Oudtshoorn, Overstrand 
(Hermanus and surrounding towns), Paarl, Port Elizabeth, 
Porterville, Postmasburg, Richtersveld (Port Nolloth and 
surrounding towns), Springbok, Stellenbosch, Swellendam, 
Upington, Vredenburg, Witzenberg (Ceres and surrounding 
towns) and Worcester

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

The Global Relay For Life Heroes of Hope survivorship 
initiative involves the selection of ‘Heroes of Hope’ from the 
global Relay participating countries – cancer survivors, 
Kobus Smit (Mossel Bay), Obie Woolward (Worcester) and 
the late Didi Coertze (George) were awarded this great 
honour in 2012 

Karsten cyclists from Upington raised R290 000 to be used 
for care and support of patients in the Northern Cape

The Smith Tabata Buchanan Boyes Mountain Bike race in 
the Cape raised R73 000 in support of breast cancer 
awareness in October 2012

The Rooi Rose Tea event was held in September 2012 at 
Rhebokskloof  and non-perishable items were donated for 
the three CANSA Care Homes in the Cape regions 

The CANSA Cape Metro Care Centre was selected as the 
beneficiary of the Discovery Big Walk event that took place 
in October 2012, raising awareness and R75 000

The Louis Jooste Memorial half-marathon and 10km road 
race were held for the sixth time in Kimberley and raised 
R22 000 - a ‘Blue Run’ was included for Men’s Health 
month and the 471 participants were encouraged to dress in 
blue in support of men affected by cancer

The CANSA Kimberley/Karoo Care Centre held its Annual 
Miss Matric function with 21 matric girls vying for the title 
and raising R87 000 

Employees at a Workplace Programme using the 
Smokalyzer - a device that measures the carbon
monoxide levels in your lungs - St Helena Bay, July 2012

Breast cancer support group in Atlantis in the 
Western Cape
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?

?

?

?

?

Partnerships

The annual CANSA SKOUSPEL, featured a number of 
talented local musicians and dance groups who  kept the 
audience spellbound - dancing to the rhythm and raising an 
income of R65 000

The Jail n Bail fundraiser in Kimberley challenged local 
business people and government departments to raise funds 
- participants were ‘arrested’ at workplaces or at public 
venues to create interest, awareness and a ‘bail fee’ 
donation resulted in income of R280 000 

The Sanlam Cancer Challenge was well supported with 153 
clubs participating in 175 golf days, generating an income of 
R1 033 077

At the Sanlam Cancer Challenge Golf Day at Sishen Golf 
Club, the amount of R21 700 was raised through the 
auctioning of a bottle of Ernie Els wine which had 
generously been donated

Southern Cape/Karoo hosted a very successful Vonkelvrou 
event with generous support from George businesses and 
the community raising R221 600

A total of 238 partnerships were formed for service delivery in 

various settings to ensure access to screening and care and 

support, thereby promoting and enabling continued ownership by 

the community liaison committees. The fourth and fifth year 

medical students of the University of Stellenbosch continue to 

render support to our patients at the Tygerberg Care Home during 

their Psychiatry Block. A new agreement was signed between 

CANSA and the Midrand Graduate Institute to place fourth year 

Psychology students at CANSA Care Centres for their practical 

training. The partnership with the Department of Social 

Development in both the Eastern and Western Cape provided 

subsidies towards eight partnered social workers, for which we 

are extremely grateful. We further partner with the Department of 

Health in all three Provinces where we operate.

Research Snapshot
CANSA’S partnership with the Department of Public Health 

and Family Medicine as well as the Primary Health Care 

Directorate of the University of Cape Town entered into its 

sixth year:

?The topic for the fourth-year medical students in the 

fourth block at the University of Cape Town (UCT) was 

‘Knowledge, beliefs and perceptions of Prostate Cancer’ - 

interviews were held with 97 attendees at the Grassy 

Park Community Health Centre (CHC); students will be 

developing a DVD for the CHC as a follow up

?Topic for the fourth-year medical students in the fifth 

block was ‘Knowledge, beliefs and perceptions of Breast 

Cancer’ – interviews were held with the Elsies River 

Community Health Centre and a poster was developed 

with health information 

?An Epidemiology study was further done by another block 

of students investigating the reasons why women 

defaulted on going back for their Pap smear results at a 

Reproductive Health Clinic - the findings indicated that 

women failed to return due to waiting too long for results 

which led to a proposal being forwarded to the DoH for 

consideration, whereby SMS bundles are used to inform 

clients of their results; the study also highlighted the need 

for a buddy system for cervical cancer patients, as 53% 

of women diagnosed failed to attend the treatment 

hospitals in the early stages of their diagnosis 

Cutting and shaving hair for a family member living 
with cancer at Shavathon Cape Gate Precinct

Young and old cancer survivors walking the Survivors
Lap at CANSA Relay For Life, Helderberg
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Produksies; Sol Plaatje Municipality; Sonja van Walbeeck; South Cape 

Fruits; Southern Oil Ltd; Spar Heidelberg; Spar Saldanha, Spar 

Velddrif; Spar Yzerfontein; Stage Tech; Standard Bank; Sugarbird; 

Swanvest; Tafelronde 32; Techno Dent; Thabo Hlongwane; 

Theewaterskloof Municipality; TK Manufacturing CC; Toyota 

Malmesbury; Transnet, Saldanha; Transtruct; Treble Group, 1Time 

Airline; Tronox Namakwa Sands, Upington Tuindienste; Van Wyk 

Luxury Coaches; VGK van Suider Afrika; Vic Bay Leisure Wear; 

Vodacom Payroll Programme; Volksblad; Voorberg Correctional 

Services Poverty Fund; Voortrekkers; Vroue met ‘n Verskil – Kimberley; 

Vryburgers; Weird Industries; Weskus Transport; West Coast 

Community Trust, Westering Primary School; Wilck Spar; Wintershoek 

Safaris; Witzenberg Municipality; Wium Construction; Woolworths; 

Yithethe maAfrika; Yonke Installation; Zandberg Contractors; Zylco 

Engineering.

Trusts

A. & M. Pevsner Charitable Trust; A.M.D. Owen Will Trust; Alison & Bill 

Charitable Trust; Burnall Cole Charitable Trust; C. & E. Harding 

Charitable Trust; Charles Scorer Charitable Trust; Cloverleaf Trust; D. 

Campbell Trust;  David Graaff Foundation; Diane Kaplan Charity Trust; 

Dora & William Oscar Heyne Family Trust; E. de Kock Trust; E.M.C. 

Hardidge Trust; Frances J. Appleby Will Trust; Frank & Edna Bradlow 

Charitable Trust; Gordon Charitable Trust; Gray Trust; H.P. Scott Trust; 

Het Jan Marais Nationale Fonds; Isidore Choritz Charitable Trust; 

J.E.T. Lee Will Trust; Joan Walton Charitable Trust; Kensington Trust; 

Kurt & Joey Strauss Foundation; L. & D.M. Ladan Charitable Trust; Lily 

Ashton Charitable Trust; Lynette Croudace Fund; Malherbe Charles & 

Betts Trust; Mathers Trust; R.P. Arniel Trust; Ralph Herriman 

Charitable Trust; Renier van Rooyen Trustfonds; Roland & Jean 

Richardson Trust; Rolf-Stephan Nussbaum Foundation; S.D. van der 

Merwe Trust; Saunders Trust; Sidney Schonegevel Benevolent Trust; 

T.S.  Berwitz Will Trust; T.S. Campbell Trust; Violet & Hyman Kaplan 

Will Trust; Werner Greeff Trust; William O'Reilly Trust; Woolworths 

Trust;

Estates:

Attfield, M.J.M.; Bowen, D.; Browning, M.H.; Brunette, L.; Cunningham, 

D.H.; De Goede, F.M.E.; De Vries, E.; Drake, Z.E.; Du Toit, M.C.J.; 

Gersbach, R.V.; Gerstner, E.W.; Giliomee, P.H.; Heunis, G.S.; Levin, 

D.; Louw, F.; Luyt, C.F.; McCluskie, A.B.; Mostert, M.M.E.; Philander, 

C.; Rogers, A.G.K.; Schoeman, E.; Truter, H.S.; Truter, J.P.; Van 

Rooyen, H.J.; Van Zyl, C.K.; Visser, G.M.; Visser, W.G.P.; Wright, M.

Trusts & Bequest

Special Thanks
The willingness and the continued support of our volunteers are vital 

for us to be able to reach our various communities in the Southern 

Business Unit. The ‘hands and feet’ of our volunteers allow us to 

extend our care and support, provide more education and awareness 

as well as implement additional fundraising activities. Our diverse 

volunteers corps share their unique skills with us for which we are 

very grateful. We salute you and thank you!   

We also want to thank the following donors and sponsors for their 

wonderful contributions: 

The fundraising volunteers of the CANSA Eikehof Care Home – Anne 

Senior, Erica Lodge, Margaret Senior; Margaret Werge, Pat Flesch. 

ABSA Kimberley; ABSA KwaDwezi; ABSA; Ackerdyk Gemeente; 

ACSA; Adventure Boot Camp; Afrisam; Agri Noord-Kaap, HM van 

Blerk; Alexkor; AlgoaFM; Ampath; Aquella; Arnie’s Panel Shop; 

Asmang Mine; Aspen Healthcare; Association for the Physically 

Disabled; Athlone Sub-Council; ATKV; AV Design; Avis Van Rental; 

Bagshaw Footwear; Barit Mining; Bay TV; Beaufort West Municipality; 

Black Mountain Vedanta; Bridgestone; Buco; Burmeisters; Caltex; 

Camdekon Engineers; Carpe Diem Skool; Ceres Fruit Juice; Chemex; 

City of Cape Town; Club Mykonos, Coastal Tool Hire; Coca-Cola, PE; 

Coca-Cola; Cofesa; Collegiate Primary School; Cross Roads 

Distributors; CS Diamonds; Curves; Damelin; DC Leeuw; De Beers 

Big Hole; De Beers Namaqualand Mines; De Beers; De Wet Carpets; 

Derek Corns; Diamond Pavilion Mall; Die Courant; Die Gazette; Die 

Gemsbok; Die Weslander; Discovery Big Walk; Dr Gareth Lewis; Dr L 

Stockigt; Dr Scribante; E Gerber; Electro Comp; ESS Medical; 

Finesse Beauty Clinic; First National Battery; Flamingo Casino; FNB; 

Frontier Events; Galvendale Senior Secondary School; Gariep Motors; 

General Motors; Gentech Engineering Plastics CC; Gentech Preform 

& Fibre CC; George Herald Group Editors; Goue Drome; Grand Prix 

Printers; Gridnic Agencies; GVI Oncology; Hartenbos Volunteers; 

Hermanus Medical Centre; Hirsch;  Hoffe Park Verblyfsentrum; HV 

Electrical; Hyundai Kimberley; IM van Rooyen; Ivan Copeowitz; 

Jacques Deyzel; Jacques Photography; Johan Meiring & Associates; 

JP’s Nissan; Just on Cosmetics; Kalahari Bulletin; Kao Sheng Knitting; 

Karsten Boerdery; Kathu Gazette; Kemspley Park SAPS; Khara Hais 

Municipality; Koki’s Slaghuis; KSM Distributors; Kumba Mines; 

Lamberts Bay Foods; Landman van Rensburg; Liberty Life; Life 

Healthcare; Lions Club; M Kamfer; Madiba Bay Events; Manie 

Potgieter; Marange Plant Hire; Masquerade; Maven Connection; 

Max4 Cars; MC Suppliers; McDonalds; MDJ Steenkamp; Metro 

Cleaning Services; Metropolitan; Midas Piketberg, Mortimer Toyota 

Vredenburg; Mosadi Business Enterprise; Mosselbaai Advertiser; 

Mr L Jenner; Mugg&Bean; Mullen, Terblanche & Beyers; Namaqua 

District Municipality; Nedbank; Neil Jacobs; Nelson Mandela Bay 

Tourism; Neways; NG Kerk Groot Brakrivier; NGK A&S; Nissan 

Kimberley; NMS; Omega Risk Solutions; Ons Kontrei; Oranjerivier 

Kelders; Orbit Signs; Oudtshoorn Courant; Oudtshoorn Vryburgers; 

Overstrand Municipality; Party Design; Patagonia Farming; Pathcare; 

Patsy Victor; PE Oval Track Raceway; Pearl Star Investment; 

PenBev; Peninsula Beverages; Pick n Pay Upington; Pick n Pay 

Vredenburg and Langebaan; PriceWaterhouseCoopers; Prima Bande; 

Prime Cleaning; Protyre CC; PS du Toit Apteek; PSG Consult; 

Quantity Surveyors, Villiersdorp; Queenstown Auto Electrical; Radio 

Namakwaland; Radio Riverside; Radio Weskus; Radiological Society 

of SA; Real People; Renschke Laubscher; Reymar Freight; RNA 

Verspreiders, Rola Volkswagen; Ronel’s Bloemiste, Rooi Rose;  

Rooibos; Rotary Club; SA Reserve Bank; Sakkie Slaghuis; Sandvink; 

Sanitech; Sanlam; Sea Harvest, St Helena Bay; Seesa; Sektor 

Consulting Engineers; Shoprite Checkers Western Cape; Shoprite; 

Smart Farming; Smith Tabata Buchanan Boyes STBB; SND 
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Volunteer Snapshot

Fund Development

R11 494 339

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?

?141 Liaison Committees 

?730  Health Programme volunteers

?1 865 Care and Support volunteers

?37  Administration volunteers

?817 Fund Development volunteers

?166 Phakimisa Navigators to assist with support and 

care to breast cancer patients

?33 Movember Navigators to assist with support and care 

to testicular and prostate cancer patients

The following main events were successfully championed 

with the help of our dedicated volunteers:

CANSA Relay For Life – R5 797 877

CANSA Shavathon - R925 200

Sanlam Cancer Challenge – R1 033 077

Cuppa For CANSA – R792 051

Teledonations – R350 353

Toktokkie – R788 179

Breast Health Walks – R250 742

Jail n Bail – R279 428

Healthy Living – R13 400

Vonkelvrou – R222 601 

Special regional events - R1 041 431  

Look what CANSA Southern Business 
Unit did in 2012/2013
Health Awareness by Numbers
?

?

?

?

?

?

Screening by Numbers

?

?

?

?

?

?

Support by Numbers
?

?

?

?

?

?

263 942  people were reached with 3 883 talks on cancer 

awareness

130 216 people were reached through 102 cancer 

awareness exhibitions, health days and health camps

7 076 people were reached with 174 talks on screening 

and early detection

5 829 people were reached through 93 screening and early 

detection exhibitions

A total of 60 632 youth were educated

at 298 schools and educational facilities

138 147 cancer awareness leaflets were

distributed

We conducted screenings - some in

partnership with the Department of 

Health (DoH) - at Care Clinics based 

at CANSA Care Centres as well as 

in remote areas using our mobile health units  

4 284 Pap smears for cervical cancer plus 2 134  with 

DoH

5 347 Clinical Breast Examinations to detect breast lumps 

plus 1 347 with DoH

89 SureTouch screenings for breast cancer

4 007 Prostate Specific Antigen (PSA) tests to detect 

prostate cancer 

314 skin examinations and 499 FotoFinder examinations  

1 213 lifestyle risk assessments conducted with 945 other 

screenings such as HIV and Diabetes

Patient care provided to 23 070

cancer survivors and their loved ones

8 587 Survivors were cared for at home

(home-based care)

1 000  patients were accommodated 

at the four CANSA Care Homes

(12 184  bed-days)

43 support groups established and

maintained - attended by 3 396 

survivors

Medical equipment and other assistive

devices were made available to

1 329 people

7 215 cancer patients were supported

at oncology clinics whilst receiving

cancer treatment (we also funded the

post of a translator at Groote Schuur

Hospital as part of this service)

MOBILE UNITMOBILE UNIT

Toll-free0800 22 66 22www.cansa.org.za
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
The directors are responsible for the preparation, integrity, and 

fair presentation of the financial statements of the Cancer 

Association of South Africa. The financial statements 

presented on pages 4 to 25 have been prepared in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 

(“IFRS”), and include amounts based on judgments and 

estimates made by management.

In order for the directors to discharge their responsibilities, 

management has developed and continues to maintain a 

system of internal control. The directors have ultimate 

responsibility for the system of internal control and review its 

operation, primarily through the board of directors and other 

risk-monitoring committees.

The internal controls include a risk-based system of internal 

accounting and administrative controls designed to provide 

reasonable but not absolute assurance that assets are 

safeguarded and that transactions are executed and recorded 

in accordance with generally accepted business practices and 

the company’s policies and procedures. These controls which 

are implemented by trained, skilled personnel with appropriate 

segregation of duties are monitored by management and 

include a comprehensive budgeting and reporting system and 

an appropriate control framework.

The external auditors are responsible for independently 

auditing and reporting on the fair presentation of the annual 

financial statements in conformity with International Financial 

Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the 

Companies Act of South Africa.

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance 

with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the 

manner required by the Companies Act of South Africa and 

incorporate disclosures in line with the accounting philosophy 

of the company. They are based on appropriate accounting 

policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and 

prudent judgments and estimates. 

The directors believe that the company will be a going 

concern in the year ahead. For this reason, they continue to 

adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial 

statements.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 4 to 25 

were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 September 

2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

Approval of Annual Financial Statements

Mr Bugs Pancha
Chairperson

Mr Derek Foster
Audit Committee Chairperson
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In accordance with the provisions of section 88(2) of the 

South African Companies Act (Act 71 of 2008), I certify that, 

to the best of my knowledge and belief, the company has filed 

for the financial year ended 31 March 2013 all such returns 

and notices as are required of a non-profit company of the 

said Act, and that all such returns and notices appear to be 

true, correct and up to date.

Ms M Laubscher

Company Secretary

Certificate by 
Company Secretary

2



Qualified Opinion

Other reports required by the Companies Act

In our opinion, except for the effect of such adjustments, if 

any, as might have been necessary for the matter described 

in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the financial 

statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of The Cancer Association of South Africa as at 31 

March 2013, and its financial performance and cash flows for 

the year then ended in accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards, and the requirements of the Companies 

Act of South Africa.

As part of our audit of the financial statements for the year 

ended 31 March 2013, we have read the Directors’ Report, 

Company Secretary’s Certificate and the Corporate 

Governance Report for the purpose of identifying whether 

there are material inconsistencies between these reports and 

the audited financial statements. These reports are the 

responsibility of the respective preparers. Based on reading 

these reports we have not identified material inconsistencies 

between these reports and the audited financial statements. 

However, we have not audited these reports and accordingly 

do not express an opinion on them.

Deloitte & Touche

Registered Auditor

Per C Naidoo

Partner

19 September 2013

Address:

Audit - Johannesburg 

Buildings 1 and 2 

Deloitte Place 

The Woodlands 

Woodlands Drive 

Woodmead 

Sandton  

We have audited the annual financial statements of The 

Cancer Association of South Africa (“The Association”), set out 

on pages 7 to 29, which comprise the statement of financial 

position as at 31 March 2013, and the statement of 

comprehensive income, the statement of changes in 

accumulated funds and the statement of cash flows for the 

year then ended, and the notes comprising of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The Association’s directors are responsible for the preparation 

and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, 

and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, 

and for such internal control as the directors determine is 

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 

statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those 

standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether the financial statements are free 

from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

of error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 

considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 

and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as 

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified 

audit opinion.

In common with similar organisations, it is not feasible for the 

Association to institute accounting controls over cash 

collections from donations, fundraising activities, subscriptions, 

bequests and other income prior to the initial entry of the 

collection in the accounting records. Accordingly, it was 

impractical for us to extend our examination beyond the 

receipts actually recorded.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibility

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Nature of Operations

Mission

Purpose

Performance

Financial Position

Contribution of Volunteers

Donations

Going Concern

The Cancer Association of South Africa (“CANSA”) is a non-

profit company, as defined in the Companies Act (Act 71 of 

2008), and needs to comply with a set of principles set out in 

Schedule 1 of the Act.  

To be the preferred non-profit leader that enables research, 

educates the public and provides support to all people 

affected by cancer.

To lead the fight against cancer in South Africa to save lives.

The CANSA operational deficit for the year amounted to R7.8 

million (2012: deficit of R7.9 million).  Research recorded a 

surplus of R11.3 million (2012: deficit of R1.0 million).

The accompanying financial statements reflect the 

organisation’s financial, operational and research activities for 

the financial year ended 31 March 2013. 

These financial statements cannot reflect the significant 

contributions made to CANSA by thousands of volunteers 

throughout South Africa.  The Association wishes to express 

its thanks and gratitude to all of these volunteers.

Without the support of corporations, trusts and the public, who 

so generously donate and bequeath funds to CANSA this 

organisation could not exist.  Major donors are further 

acknowledged in our annual report.

It is the opinion of the Board of Directors that the Association 

is a going concern. 

National Lotteries Grant

Market value of Fixed Assets

Subsequent Events

Registered Office

Company Secretary

The Association has applied to the National Lotteries Board 

for a grant in the current year, but has not yet been approved. 

An amount of R14.2 million was received from the National 

Lotteries Board during 2012 relating to the grant approved in 

2011.   

We draw attention to the freehold land and buildings which 

are carried at the historical net book value of R17.0 million 

(2012: R16.4 million), which were valued by independent 

registered valuators at R53.4 million as at 31 March 2013 

(2012: R47.3 million). During the year the organisation 

acquired R1.2 million freehold land and buildings (2012: R0.3 

million) which is included in the valuation.

The directors are not aware of any significant events 

subsequent to the year-end up to date of this report, not 

otherwise dealt with in the annual financial statements, which 

could significantly affect the financial position of the 

Association at year-end or the results of its operations for the 

year under view.

26 Concorde Road West, Bedfordview, 2008

M. Laubscher

Directors’ Report
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 (continued)

Committee members

Board of Directors

Governors Committee

Remuneration Committee

Audit Committee

Social and Ethics Committee

The members of the respective committees in office at the 

date of this report are as follows:

L.B. Johnstone – Chairperson– resigned 19/03/2013

B.B. Pancha – Vice-Chairperson, appointed as Chairperson 

19/03/2013

S.C. Janse van Rensburg – CEO

R. van Jaarsveld – CFO

E.G. Joubert – COO

Prof. E.N. McIntosh – resigned 20/09/2012

Dr. C.M. Masuku

D.A. Foster

T.T. Mashaba

J.M. Judin – appointed 03/10/2012, resigned 07/01/2013

M. Jennings – appointed as temporary director 19/03/2013

Adv. G. Oliver – President and Chairperson

Prof. L. Goedhals – Central Business Unit

Dr. N. Singh- Central Business Unit, appointed 07/03/2013

V. H. Potgieter – Northern Business Unit, resigned 01/02/2013

Dr. H. Jooste – Northern Business Unit, appointed 01/11/2012

Prof. N.T. Naidoo – Southern Business Unit

J.H. Smit - Southern Business Unit

L.B. Johnstone – Chairperson, resigned 19/03/2013, Ex-Officio

B.B. Pancha – Chairperson, appointed 19/03/2013, Ex-Officio

S.C. Janse van Rensburg – CEO, Ex-Officio

T.T. Mashaba – Chairperson

Dr. T. Nell 

S.C. Janse van Rensburg – CEO, Ex-Officio

E.G. Joubert – COO, Ex-Officio

J.H. Smit – Governor, appointed 04/12/2012

D.A. Foster - Chairperson

B.B. Pancha

G. Hughes 

M. Jennings – appointed 19/03/2013

S.C. Janse van Rensburg – CEO, Ex-Officio

R. van Jaarsveld – CFO, Ex-Officio

Dr. H. Jooste – Governor, appointed 01/11/2012

(Established in November 2012 as per King III)

J.M. Judin - Chairperson, appointed 08/11/2012, resigned 

07/01/2013

S.C. Janse van Rensburg – CEO, Ex-Officio

E.G. Joubert – COO, Ex-Officio

Prof. M. Herbst – Head: Health, Ex-Officio

Prof. M. Swanepoel – appointed 08/11/2012

Prof. N.T. Naidoo – Governor, appointed 08/11/2012

Investment Committee

Research Committee 

Chairpersons Committee

B.B. Pancha – Chairperson

M. Jennings – appointed 19/03/2013

S.C. Janse van Rensburg – CEO

R. van Jaarsveld – CFO

V.H. Potgieter - Governor, resigned 01/02/2013

Dr. C.M. Masuku - Chairperson

S.C. Janse van Rensburg – CEO

Dr. C. Albrecht – Head: Research

Prof. V. Sewram 

Prof. L. Dreosti 

N.K. Matsau 

Prof. P. Arbuthnot

Prof. T.E. Cloete 

Prof. I.J. van der Walt 

Prof. L. Goedhals – Governor

L.B. Johnstone - Chairperson, resigned 19/03/2013

B.B. Pancha – appointed as Chairperson 19/03/2013

Dr. H. Jooste – Central Business Unit, resigned 31/10/2012

W.J. Fourie – Central Business Unit, appointed 01/11/2012

M. de Freitas – Northern Business Unit

Dr. T. Smalberger – Southern Business Unit 

S.C. Janse van Rensburg – CEO

E.G. Joubert – COO

Directors’ Report continued
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CANSA adheres to the principle of sound governance based 

on the following strategic objective:

Implementing and practising good governance, ensuring all 

documentation in respect of governance and policy is 

compliant with the new Companies Act and aligned with the 

King III report, to support transparency and accountability as 

we govern stakeholder relationships

The Association applies the following principles in order to 

implement and practice good governance:

?Ethical leadership and corporate citizenship

?The Articles of Association was replaced by the 

Memorandum of Incorporation (MOI) as per the new 

Companies Act and approved by the members at the 

Annual General Meeting (AGM) in September 2012

?As per the MOI and aligned charter, the Board of Directors 

meet at least four times per year and ensures that the 

organisation survives and thrives

?Sub-committees meet at least three times per year and 

each have a charter setting out its responsibilities

?The board ensures that the strategy is aligned with the 

purpose of the organisation, the value drivers of its business 

and the legitimate interest and expectations of its 

stakeholders

?Risk Committees have been established to control and 

monitor risk in the Organisation by means of risk 

assessment

?The Association has an effective and independent Audit 

Committee which is chaired by an independent non-

executive director

?The Association complies with applicable laws, rules, codes 

and standards

?The Association established an internal audit function which 

systematically analyses and evaluates business processes 

and associated controls

?The Association is transparent and accountable and ensures 

integrated reporting and disclosure

?The Association governs stakeholders’ relationships

Corporate Governance Report King III 
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Assets

Non-current assets 138,941 126,385

Property and equipment 5 20,463 19,606

Other financial assets 6 118,478 106,779

15,412 14,347

Inventories 7 2,490 2,805

Receivables 8 7,191 7,480

Cash and bank balances 9 5.731 4,062

Total assets 154,353 140,732

117,122 113,632

Operational funds and reserves (7,844) (38)

Research funds and reserves 10 124,956 113,670

19,835 15,684

National Lotteries Distribution Trust Fund 11 3,308 2,151

Earmarked funds 11 16,527 13,533

17,406 11,416

Trade and other payables 12 17,406 10,842

Bank overdraft 9 - 574

154,353 140,732

Current assets

Accumulated funds and reserves

Other funds

Current liabilities

Total accumulated funds and liabilities

Accumulated Funds and Liabilities

2013 2012

Notes R'000 R'000

as at 31 March 2013
Statement of Financial Position
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Income from fund development 13 24,984 24,724

Income from national and provincial projects 14 35,608 33,463

Income from donations and general income 15 14,720 15,137

Income from bequests 11,714 5,819

Investment revenue 16 214 94

Other gains and losses 17 13,726 17,616

Administration and service delivery expenses (94,847) (90,906)

Expenditure relating to utilisation of National Lotteries 

Distribution Trust Fund (13,155) (13,083)

Finance costs 18 (810) (720)

19 (7,806) (7,856)Total comprehensive deficit for the year 

2013 2012

Notes R'000 R'000

7,818 114,689 122,507

Total comprehensive deficit for the year (7,856) (1,019) (8,875)

(38) 113,670 113,632

Total comprehensive (deficit) / surplus for the year (7,806) 11,286 3,480

(7,844) 124,956 117,112

R'000 R'000 R'000

Balance at 31 March 2011

Balance at 31 March 2012

Balance at 31 March 2013 

Accumulated

Operational Funds

and Reserves

 Accumulated 

Research Funds 

and Reserves

 Total

Accumulated 

Funds and 

Reserves

for the Year Ended 31 March 2013

for the Year Ended 31 March 2013
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Statement of Changes in Accumulated Funds
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Cash Flows Utilised in

Operating Activities 

Cash Flows Generated From

Investing Activities 

Cash Flows Generated From 
Financing Activities 

(8,022) (40,138)

Cash receipts from operating activities 87,315 78,329

Cash paid in operating activities (85,322) (94,933)

Cash generated from / (utilised in) operations 21 1,993 (16,604)

Net cash utilised in research activities (10,015) (23,534)

9,682 20,637

Acquisition of property and equipment (2,393) (886)

Proceeds on disposal of property and equipment 747 117

Net investment income 214 788

Decrease in other financial assets 11,114 20,618

583 15,963

(Repayment of) / increase in research loan (1,141) 15,801

Increase in research accounts payable 1,724 162

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,243 (3,538)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 3,488 7,026

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9 5,731 3,488

Statement of Cash Flows
for the Year Ended 31 March 2013

2013 2012

Notes R'000 R'000



3.2 Basis of preparation

3.3 Property and equipment

3.4 Impairment of tangible assets

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical 

cost basis except for the revaluation of certain non-current 

assets and financial instruments. Historical cost is generally 

based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange 

for assets.  

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Owner occupied property is stated at cost less accumulated 

depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.  

Leasehold property is amortised over the life of the lease.  

Furniture, motor vehicles and equipment are depreciated on a 

straight line basis over their estimated useful lives to their 

estimated residual values. Freehold land is not depreciated.  

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost on items 

of property and equipment over their estimated useful lives to 

their estimated residual value. Estimated residual values, 

useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at each 

year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate 

accounted for on a prospective basis.

The rates of depreciation are as follows:

Freehold buildings 2% per annum

Leasehold buildings 2% per annum 

Furniture and equipment 20% per annum

Motor vehicles 20% per annum

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an 

item of property and equipment is determined as the 

difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount 

of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

At the end of each reporting date, the Association reviews the 

carrying value of its tangible assets to determine whether 

there is any indication that those assets may be impaired.  If 

any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the 

asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 

impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate 

the recoverable amount for an individual asset, the 

recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit 

to which the asset belongs. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to 

sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated 

future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 

pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 

of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset 

for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been 

adjusted.

1. General Information

2. Adoption of new and revised International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

3. Significant accounting policies

The entity is an Association not for gain, incorporated in South 

Africa. The addresses of its registered office and principal 

place of business are disclosed within the directors’ report.  

The principal activities of the Association are also described 

therein.

In the current year, the company has adopted all the new and 

revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the 

International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) that are 

relevant and effective for the accounting period beginning 1 

April 2012.  This has not had any material impact on 

disclosures for the current year.

As at the date of these financial statements, the following 

relevant standards and interpretations were in issue but not 

yet effective:

Standard/Interpretation Annual accounting 

period beginning 

on or after

IAS 1 Presentation of Amendment

Financial Statements 1 January 2013

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Amendment

Equipment 1 January 2013

IAS 19 Employee Benefits Amendment

1 January 2013

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Amendment

Presentation 1 January 2013

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Amendment 

Disclosure 1 January 2013

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments New 1 January 2013

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement New 1 January 2013

The directors have not yet assessed the impact of the above 

standards and interpretations on the financial statements of 

the company within the period of initial application.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 

with International Financial Reporting Standards and the 

requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective in the current 

period

2.2 Standards and interpretations in issue not yet adopted

3.1 Statement of compliance

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 March 2013
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?it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a 

hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading 

may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

?such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a 

measurement or recognition inconsistency that would 

otherwise arise; or

?the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets 

or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its 

performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in 

accordance with the Association’s document risk 

management or investment strategy, and information about 

the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

?it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded 

derivatives, and IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 

and Measurement permits the entire combined contract 

(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any 

resultant gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.  The net 

gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any 

dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is 

included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item in the 

statement of comprehensive income. Fair value is determined 

in the manner described in note 13.

Receivables and loans that have fixed or determinable 

payments that are not quoted in an active market are 

classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables 

are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 

method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by 

applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term 

receivables when the recognition of interest would be 

immaterial.

Due to the short-term nature of the Association’s receivables, 

amortised cost is deemed to equal fair value. 

Investments are classified as financial assets at FVTPL. They 

are initially measured at fair value. Increases or decreases in 

the carrying amount of investments are recognised in profit or 

loss.

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss when the 

Association’s right to receive the dividends is established.

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at face value which 

approximates fair value. Cash and cash equivalents comprise 

cash on hand and demand deposits, bank overdrafts and 

other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily 

convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to 

insignificant risks of changes in value.

Loans and receivables

Investments

Cash and cash equivalents

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less 

than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is 

reduced to its recoverable amount.  An impairment loss is 

recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying 

amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its 

recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount 

does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 

determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the 

asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Association’s financial instruments consist mainly of 

investments, bank balances and cash, receivables and trade 

payables. 

Financial instruments mentioned above, are stated at their fair 

values. 

The Association does not use derivative financial instruments 

nor does the Association speculate in the trading of derivative 

instruments.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified 

categories: financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ 

(FVTPL) and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification 

depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets 

and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the 

amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest 

income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is 

the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 

(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of 

the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other 

premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the 

financial asset, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the 

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt 

instruments other than those financial assets designated as at 

FVTPL.

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL where the 

financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated as 

at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

?it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in 

the near future; or

?it is part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments 

that the Association manages together and has a recent 

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

3.5 Financial instruments

FINANCIAL ASSETS

EFFECTIVE INTEREST METHOD

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 

PROFIT/LOSS (FVTPL)

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements - 31 March 2013 continued
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Other financial liabilities

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Association does not have any financial liabilities other 

than borrowings and trade payables which are classified as 

‘other financial liabilities’.

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially 

measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Other 

financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised 

cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense 

recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the 

amortised cost of a financial liability and allocating interest 

expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is 

the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments 

through the expected life of the financial liability, or where 

appropriate, a shorter period.

The Association derecognises financial liabilities when, and 

only when, the Association’s obligations are discharged, 

cancelled or expire.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined on the 

first-in first-out method, and net realisable value. Costs 

comprise direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour 

cost and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing 

the inventories to their present location and condition. Net 

realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all 

estimated cost of completion and cost to be incurred in 

marketing, selling and distribution.

The Association is incorporated not for gain. Consequently, in 

terms of the Memorandum of Association the accumulated 

funds are non-distributable. These funds may only be used to 

promote the objectives of the Association. 

Lotto grants are accounted for according to IAS 20 Accounting 

for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government 

Assistance. Lotto grants are recognised when there is 

reasonable assurance that the Association will comply with the 

conditions applicable to the grant and that the grants will be 

received.  Lotto grants that relate to expenses are recognised 

as income on a systematic and reasonable basis, over the 

period necessary to match them with the related costs.

Earmarked funds are administered in terms of the specific 

conditions applicable to the particular fund. 

3.6 Inventories

3.7 Accumulated funds

3.8 National Lotteries Distribution Trust Fund

3.9 Earmarked funds 

Impairment of financial assets

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for 

indicators of impairment at each reporting date. Financial 

assets are considered to be impaired where there is objective 

evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred 

after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated 

future cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as receivables, 

assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are 

subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.  

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables 

could include the Association’s past experience of collecting 

payments.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of 

the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying 

amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, 

discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest 

rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the 

impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the 

exception of receivables, where the carrying amount is 

reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a 

receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against 

the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts 

previously written off are credited against the allowance 

account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance 

account are recognised in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss 

decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an 

event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the 

previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through 

profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the 

investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not 

exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the 

impairment not been recognised.

The Association derecognises a financial asset only when the 

contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire; or it 

transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and 

rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the 

Association neither transfers nor retains substantially all the 

risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the 

transferred asset, the Association recognises its retained 

interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it 

may have to pay. If the Association retains substantially all the 

risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial 

asset, the Association continues to recognise the financial 

asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the 

proceeds received.
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3.12 Retirement benefits

3.13 Leases

4.1 Critical judgements in applying the Association's 

accounting policies 

The company contributes to a defined contribution plan. 

Contributions paid are recognised as an expense in the period 

that they occur. 

Leases are classified as financial leases whenever the terms 

of the lease transfers substantially all risk and rewards of the 

ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as 

operational leases. 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a 

straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another 

more systematic basis is more representative of the time 

pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are 

consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases 

are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are 

incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into 

operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. 

The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a 

reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except 

where another systematic basis is more representative of the 

time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset 

are consumed.

In the application of the Association’s accounting policies, 

which are described in note 3, the directors are required to 

make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the 

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily 

apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 

assumptions are based on historical experience and other 

factors that are considered relevant. Actual results may differ 

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 

ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 

revision affects only that period, or in the period of the 

revision and future periods if the revision affects both the 

current and future periods.

In the process of applying the Association's accounting 

policies, management has made no judgements that have a 

significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 

statements. The period over which each grant is recognised is 

based on each grant specification.

4. Critical accounting judgements and key 

sources of estimation uncertainty

3.10 Provisions

3.11 Revenue

Provisions are recognised when the Association has a present 

obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that 

this will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be 

reliably estimated. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of 

the consideration required to settle the present obligation at 

the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks 

and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a 

provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle 

the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value 

of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a 

provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a 

receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain 

that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the 

receivable can be measured reliably.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when 

they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the 

estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services 

rendered by employees up to the reporting date. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 

received or receivable. All revenue is stated net of Value 

Added Tax. 

Revenue from fundraising, including bequests received, is 

recognised when received. Revenue from the sale of goods is 

recognised upon the delivery of goods to customers.  

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised upon 

the delivery of a service to the customers. Royalty revenue is 

recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the 

substance of the relevant agreement (provided that it is 

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 

Association and the amount of revenue can be measured 

reliably). 

Interest revenue is recognised when it is probable that the 

economic benefits will flow to the Association and the amount 

of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest revenue is 

accrued on a time basis, with reference to the principal 

outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which 

is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 

receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that 

asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend revenue from investments is recognised when the 

shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established. 
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4.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key 

sources of estimation at the reporting date, that had a 

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed below:

4.2.1 Going concern

It is the opinion of the Board of Directors that the Association 

is a going concern. 

The following four major considerations were taken into 

account in assessing whether the Association will remain a 

going concern for the foreseeable future: 

?The approved 2011 grant from the National Lotteries 

Distribution Trust Fund of R14.2 million was received during 

November 2012.  

?Valuation of the freehold land and buildings was 

performed indicating a market value of R53.4 million (2012: 

R47.3 million). The carrying value of the freehold land and 

buildings is currently R17.0 million (2012: 16.4 million)

?The current level of investments, being R118.5 million 

(2012: R106.8 million), is deemed more than sufficient to 

cover operating and research related expenditure in the 

near future.

?There has been an increase in project revenues from events 

such as Relay for Life that is anticipated to continue 

increasing year on year.

4.2.2 Useful lives of property and equipment

As described in 3.3 above, the Association reviews the 

estimated useful lives of property and equipment at the end of 

each annual reporting period. During the financial year, the 

directors determined that the useful lives of fixed assets are 

appropriate as disclosed in the relevant note.

14
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Balance at 1 April 2012 20,664 2,912 9,039 3,354 35,969

Additions 1,233 - 536 624 2,393

Disposals (154) - (86) (567) (807)

Balance at 31 March 2013 21,743 2,912 9,489 3,411 37,555

Balance at 1 April 2012 4,283 1,760 7,487 2,833 16,363

Depreciation expense 557 51 633 159 1,400

Disposals (106) - (30) (535) (671)

Balance at 31 March 2013 4,734 1,811 8,090 2,457 17,092

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Cost 

Accumulated depreciation 

5. Property and Equipment 

Cost 37,555 35,969

Accumulated depreciation (17,092) (16,363)

Carrying value at end of the year 20,463 19,606

Freehold land and buildings 17,009 16,381

Leasehold land and buildings 1,101 1,152

Furniture and equipment 1,399 1,552

Motor vehicles 954 521

Carrying value at end of the year 20,463 19,606

Leasehold

land and 

buildings

Furniture

and

equipment

Motor 

vehicles

Freehold

land and

buildings
Total

Registers of Property and Investments 

A register of land and buildings is available for inspection by members at 

the Association's registered office.  

Market value of fixed assets - freehold land and buildings at carrying value 

(cost less accumulated depreciation) of R17.0 million (2012: R16.4 million) 

was valued by independent valuators at a market value of R53.4 million             

(2012: R47.3 million). During the year the organisation acquired R1.2 million 

(2012: R0.3 million) freehold land and buildings which is included in the 

valuation number above.

2013 2012
R'000 R'000
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6. Other Financial Assets

Financial assets carried at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

6.1 Investments

6.2 Research fund assets 

6.3 Reconciliation to statement of financial position: 

Unlisted investments - at directors' valuation (i) 2,648 5,057

Carrying value at end of the year 2,648 5,057

Listed investments – at market value 91,581 82,719

Unlisted investments – at directors’ valuation (i) 24,249 19,003

Carrying value at end of the year 115,830 101,722

Loan to CANSA operations (ii) 11,580 12,721

Total 127,410 114,443

Investments relating to earmarked funds 2,648 5,057

Research fund assets (excluding internal loan) 115,830 101,722

Carrying value at end of the year 118,478 106,779

All investments above are classified as being non-current.

(i) The directors' valuation of unlisted investments approximates the fair value of the investments.  

(ii) The loan from research funds will be repaid depending on the operational requirements and cash flows of

the Association. The loan bears interest at 6% for 2013 (2012: 6%). In reality, this is an internal loan

and therefore does not appear separately disclosed on the statement of financial position. It is disclosed

separately here in order to distinguish the funds attributable to research fund assets which are currently

being utilised elsewhere in the organisation.

A register of listed, unlisted and other investments is available for inspection by members at the Association’s registered

office.

2013 2012

R'000 R'000
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7. Inventories 

8. Receivables 

Movement in allowance for doubtful debts

9. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Merchandise  2,490 2,805

Amounts receivable from patients 3,872 4,259

Allowance for doubtful debts (545) (456)

Sundry receivables 1,110 1,082

Seal of recognition royalties receivable 1,165 2,216

VAT receivable 1,589 379

7,191 7,480

The directors consider that the carrying amount of receivables 

approximates their fair value.

Included in the Association’s receivables are amounts of R1.1 million 

(2012: R0.3 million) which are past due at the reporting date which 

the Association has not provided for. Due to past experience as well 

as commitment from certain patients, the amounts are expected to 

be recoverable at the reporting date.

Ageing of past due but not impaired

60-90 days 142 201

90-120 days 953 49

Total 1,095 250

Balance at the beginning of the year 456 770

Impairment losses recognised on receivables 391 1,074

Amounts written off during the year as uncollectable (302) (1,388)

Balance at the end of the year 545 456

Cash and bank balances 5,731 4,062

Bank overdraft - (574)

5,731 3,488

2013 2012

R'000 R'000
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10. Research Funds And Reserves

11. Earmarked Funds 

10.1 Research fund portfolios 

10.2 Movement in research funds 

11.1 Allocation of earmarked funds

11.2 National Lotteries Distribution Trust Fund

Martin Zadek 28,276 25,034

C.V. Lamont 70,143 62,100

P & R Ainslie  40 40

E/L H E Griffin  900 900

Bequests earmarked for research 28,214 25,968

Bequest funds 26,118 25,596

Accounts payable (included in trade and other payables – note 12) 2,096 372

Carrying value at end of the year 127,573 114,042

Balance at beginning of the year 113,670 114,689

Net movement on research funds (refer note 20) 11,286 (1,019)

Accumulated funds and reserves 124,956 113,670

Accounts payable (included in trade and other payables – note 12) 2,096 372

Earmark funds received (included in earmarked funds – note 11) 521 -

Balance at end of the year 127,573 114,042

National Lotteries Distribution Trust Fund 3,308 2,151

Health Promotion 2,751 4,260

Patient Care 2,623 2,872

Assets 1,326 1,345

Research 587 717

Movember 7,506 3,268

Other 1,734 1,071

Carrying value at end of the year 19,835 15,684

Balance at beginning of the year 2,151 10,078

Earmarked Funds received 14,272 5,161

Earmarked funds utilised (13,115) (13,088)

Balance at end of the year 3,308 2,151

2013 2012

R'000 R'000
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11. Earmarked Funds (continued)

12. Trade and Other Payables

13. Income From Fund Development

11.3 Movement in other earmarked funds

Balance at beginning of the year 13,533 10,775

Earmarked funds received 11,012 5,901

Earmarked funds utilised (8,018) (3,143)

Balance at end of the year 16,527 13,533

The terms of the contract between the Association and the 

Movember Foundation changed during the prior year resulting 

in all income from the Movember fund-raising event to be 

recognised within earmarked funds to be utilised towards the 

following goals: survivorship for men affected by prostate and 

testicular cancer, prostate and testicular cancer research and 

influencing change in men’s health. It is anticipated that these 

funds will be utilised in the forthcoming financial years.

Trade payables 7,680 2,843

Leave pay accrual 4,167 4,461

Accrued expenses 4,202 2,918

Sundry payables 1,357 620

Total 17,406 10,842

Income relating to fund development comprises:

Mail appeals and Teledonations 5,100 5,541

Corporates and trusts 8,034 12,885

Government grants 3,832 3,155

Movember grants 955 -

Utilisation of earmarked funds 7,063 3,143

Total 24,984 24,724

2013 2012

R'000 R'000
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14. Income From National and Provincial Projects

15. Income from Donations and General

16. Investment Revenue

17. Other Gains And Losses

18. Finance Costs

19. Deficit For The Year

Income relating to national and provincial projects comprise:

Relay for Life, Cuppa, Sanlam Cancer Challenge, Shavathon, 

Jail ‘n Bail, Movember and others 25,537 26,067

Special provincial events 6,803 5,800

Other projects and events 3,268 1,596

Total 35,608 33,463

The terms of the Movember contract between the Association 

and the Movember Foundation changed during the current year.  

Please refer to note 11 for more detail.

Donations and general income 8,675 7,095

Hospitium, Cytology, Stoma and others 6,045 8,042

Total 14,720 15,137

Gain on Research loan written off - 4,500

Gain on disposal of property and equipment 611 28

National Lottery Distribution Trust Fund grant utilised 13,115 13,088

Total 13,726 17,616

Interest paid on Research loan 810 720

Total 810 720

Staff costs 58,822 55,708

Fund-raising costs 15,800 10,730

Repairs and maintenance 2,499 2,565

Audit fees 888 971

Current year 750 700

Prior year – under provision 138 271

Operating lease expenses 2,508 2,312

Depreciation 1,400 2,332

Details on remuneration paid to directors and senior 

management have been disclosed in note 27 - Related Parties.

Interest revenue: bank deposits 213 94

Dividends received 1 -

Total 214 94

2013 2012

R'000 R'000
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20. Research Statement Of Comprehensive Income
Income from bequests received - 700

Investment revenue

Dividends 1,377 1,899

Interest received from bank deposits 245 694

Interest received from CANSA operations 810 720

Other gains and losses

Net gain arising on financial assets as at FVTPL 21,426 9,800

Trust and other income 1,074 270

Expenditure relating to research grants received (7,096) (4,926)

Loan to operations written off - (4,500)

Staff costs (3,244) (3,210)

Consultants (230) (46)

Investment advisor's fees (600) (679)

Travel and accommodation (491) (254)

Administration expenses (1,209) (952)

Other expenses (776) (535)

Net movement on research funds (Note 10) 11,286 (1,019)

21. Reconciliation of Deficit for the Year to 

 Cash Generated From / (Utilised In) Operations
Deficit for the year (7,806) (7,856)

Finance costs recognised in profit or loss 810 720

Investment revenue recognised in profit or loss (214) (94)

Gain on disposal of property and equipment (611) (28)

Gain from write-off of research loan - (4,500)

Depreciation of property and equipment 1,400 2,332

Impairment loss recognised on receivables 391 1,074

Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable (302) (1,388)

(6,332) (9,740)

Movements in working capital:

Decrease/(increase) in inventory 315 (1,052)

Decrease/(increase) in receivables 289 1,210

Increase in trade and other payables 6,564 905

Increase/(decrease) in National Lotteries Board funds 1,157 (7,927)

Cash generated from / (utilised in) operations 1,993 (16,604)

2013 2012

R'000 R'000
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22. Financial Instruments

22.1 Fair value of financial instruments

22.1.1 Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value

All financial instruments are carried at fair value or amounts that approximate fair value. The carrying

amounts for investments, cash and cash equivalents as well as receivables and payables approximate

fair value due to the short term nature of the instruments. These are reflected below. 

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are determined as follows:

• The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and

traded on an active liquid market are determined with reference to quoted market prices.

• The fair values of other financial assets and liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are

determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow

analysis using prices from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes for similar

instruments.

22.1.2 Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial 

recognition to fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is 

observable.

• Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities.

• Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within 

Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. 

derived from prices).

• Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the 

asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Financial assets designated at FVTPL - 91,581 26,897 118,478

Total - 91,581 26,897 118,478

There were no transfers between the different 

levels in the period.

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Financial Assets at FVTPL

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
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Cash and bank balances 5,731 4,062

Designated as at FVTPL 118,478 106,779

Loans and receivables 5,602 6,741

Amortised cost (13,239) (6,381)

Bank overdraft - (574)

116,572 110,627

22.2 Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

Financial liabilities

2013 2012
R'000 R'000

22.3.1 Foreign currency risk management

There is no exposure to foreign currency risk as there are no transactions or balances denominated in

foreign currency.

22.3.2 Interest rate risk management

The Association finances its operations through its accumulated funds and cash accumulated in the 

bank. Due to there being no external borrowings, exposure to interest rate risk is minimal. 

22.3.3 Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has built an

appropriate liquidity management framework for the Association’s short term funding and liquidity 

management requirements. The Association manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, 

banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash 

flows. The Association also manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring that 

adequate unutilised borrowing facilities are maintained. It is the Association’s policy to deposit short-term 

cash investments with major financial institutions. 

Liquidity profile

The liquidity profile of the Association’s financial assets and liabilities is reflected below:

22.3 Financial Risk Management

Designated as at FVTPL - - - 118,478 118,478

Loans and receivables 5 602 - - - 5 602

At amortised cost          (13 239) - - - (13 239) 

Bank overdraft - - - - -

Designated as at FVTPL - - - 106,779 106,779

Loans and receivables 6,741 - - - 6,741

At amortised cost (6,381) - - - (6,381)

Bank overdraft (574) - - - (574)

At 31 March 2013: 0-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years Total

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

At 31 March 2012: 0-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years Total



Due to the nature of the Association and the services they provide, investment portfolios are managed by

portfolio managers.

In addition, there are certain portfolios of investments which include capital guarantees. The majority of the

Association’s investments are equity based. These are subject to price fluctuations on the Johannesburg

Stock Exchange and are managed by PSG, Sanlam Private Investments, Investec and Huysamer Capital

Investments.

22.3.5 Credit risk management

Potential concentrations of credit risk consist principally of debtors and balances at banks. Debtors consist

mainly of medical accounts and the Lotto. Due to the nature of the debtors, credit evaluations are not

performed. However, revenue and the related debtor are only recognised when no significant uncertainty as

to its collectability exists. Appropriate allowance for estimated irrecoverable amounts is made and at the

year-end. Management did not consider there to be any material credit risk exposure that was not already

covered by a doubtful debt provision. Refer to note 8 for details.

22.3.4 Market risk management
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23. Retirement Fund Contributions 

24. Operating Leases 

The Cancer Association pension fund is a defined contribution 

plan. The funds are governed by the Pension Funds Act of 

1956. All employees contribute to the fund. 

Number of Pension Fund members 264 281

Pension Fund contribution for the year 6,437 6,318

Commitments at year-end in respect of operating leases

are detailed below:

Payable within one year 959 773

Payable within 2-5 years 1,445 1,582

2,404 2,355

2013 2012

R'000 R'000
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25. Contingent Liabilities 

26. Taxation 

27. Related Party Transactions and Directors’ Emoluments

There are no contingent liabilities at year end (2012: none).

The Association is exempt from tax in terms of section 10 of the Income Tax Act.  

The Association has related party relationships with its directors and prescribed officers. The identification of related

parties is considered annually for disclosure and presentation.

During the year, an amount of R393,278 (2012: R308,155) was received from The Giving Organisation Trust. 

Rudolf v Jaarsveld (CFO) is a trustee on behalf of CANSA on The Giving Organisation Trust. Charities and other

non-profit organisations from a variety of good causes are represented on The Giving Organisation Trust. 

27.1 Identity of related parties

27.2 Related party transactions and balances

Key management personnel compensation, excluding directors

Total guaranteed remuneration 6,442 6,016

Executive Directors

The remuneration of the executive directors for the year 

ended 31 March 2013 was as follows:

Total guaranteed remuneration 2,231 2,005

Performance related 401 301

2,632 2,306

Non-Executive Directors

The level of fees for service as director, additional fees for service

on the board committees and the chairman’s fee are reviewed annually.

The remuneration of non-executive directors for the year ended 

31 March 2013 was:

For attendance at meetings 66 57

27.3 Transactions with key management personnel

2013 2012

R'000 R'000
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